# BENTLEY CRICKET CLUB



## Yearbook **2021/22**

## This year the clubs AGM will be held on Tuesday 21st June 2022

**Canning Sports Club** 

7:00PM start

#### **Table of Contents**

Ladders	2
Presidents Report	3
Coaches Report	4
Chairman of Selectors Report	5
1st Side Report	8
1st Side Batting and Partnerships	10
1st Side Bowling	11
2nd Side Report	12
2nd Side Batting and Partnerships	14
2nd Side Bowling	15
3rd Side Report	16
3rd Side Batting and Partnerships	18
3rd Side Bowling	19
4th Side Report	20
4th Side Batting and Partnerships	22
4th Side Bowling	23
Glen Hewitt - 200 Matches	24
One Day Side Report	25
One Day Side Batting and Partnerships	26
One Day Side Bowling	27
Charity Day Report	28
Newest Blues	29
David Berry Memorial Match Report	30
Club Roles	31
Season Batting	32
Season Bowling	34
Ralph Dungey Points	36
Consistency Award Points	37
Career Batting (current players only)	38
Career Bowling (current players only)	40
Milestones Achieved	42
Milestones Achievable 2022/23	43
Grade Awards	44
T20 Season Batting, Bowling and Partnerships	45
T20 Career Batting (current players only)	46
T20 Career Bowling (current players only)	47
Top Performers - Career	48
Top Performers - 1st Side	50
Top Performers - 2nd Side	52
Top Performers - 3rd Side	54
Top Performers - 4th Side	56
Top Performers - 5th Side	58
Top Performers - OD Side	60

#### Ladders

1st Grade	Team	Р	W	L	т	D	Points
	Murdoch University Melville	11	9	2	0	0	80
	High Wycombe	11	8	3	0	0	72
	Bentley	11	7	4	0	0	64
	Wembley Districts	11	7	4	0	0	64
	Swan Valley	11	5	6	0	0	48
	Bedford Morley	11	5	6	0	0	44
	Balcatta	11	4	7	0	0	38
	Swanbourne	11	4	7	0	0	36
	Subiaco Marist	11	3	8	0	0	28
	South Perth	11	3	8	0	0	26
3rd Grade	Team	Р	W	L	Т	D	Points
	Wembley Districts	11	8	3	0	0	74
	Murdoch University Melville	11	8	3	0	0	74
	South Perth	11	8	3	0	0	74
	Bedford Morley	11	7	4	0	0	60
	High Wycombe	11	6	5	0	0	60
	Balcatta	11	5	6	0	0	46
	Swan Valley	11	5	6	0	0	44
	Swanbourne	11	4	7	0	0	38
	Bentley	11	4	7	0	0	<b>36</b>
	Subiaco Marist	11	0	11	0	0	0
	Sublacti Marist	11	U	11	U	U	U
6th Grade	Team	Р	W	L	T	D	Points
	Subiaco Marist	11	10	1	0	0	92
	Bentley	11	8	3	0	0	72
	South Perth	11	7	4	0	0	64
	Bedford Morley	11	6	5	0	0	54
	Kalamunda	11	6	5	0	0	54
	Murdoch University Melville	11	3	8	0	0	28
	Fremantle Mosman Park	11	2	9	0	0	20
	Curin Victoria Park	11	2	9	0	0	16
7th Grade	Team	Р	W	L	Т	D	Points
	North Perth	11	9	2	0	0	88
	Swanbourne	11	8	2	1	0	77
	Western Suburbs	11	6	4	1	0	61
	Whitfords	11	6	5	0	0	56
	Curtin Victoria Park	11	6	5	0	0	54
	Bentley	11	3	8	0	0	28
	Ocean Ridge	11	3	8	0	0	24
	North Beach Carine	11	2	9	0	0	18
One Day 2	Team	Р	W	L	Т	D	Points
•	Subiaco Marist	14	12	2	0	0	96
	Balcatta	14	10	4	0	0	80
	Curtin Victoria Park	14	9	5	0	0	72
	Wembley Districts	14	8	6	0	0	64
	Whitfords	14	6	8	0	0	48
	Western Suburbs	14	6	8	0	0	48
	Swan Valley	14	3	11	0	0	24
	Bentley	14	2	12	0	0	16
T20 Div 1	Team	Р	W	L	т	В	Points
	North Perth	2	2	0	0	1	30
	Bentley	2	1	1	0	1	20
	Kalamunda	2	0	2	0	1	10
	Raidiffutida	_	U	4	U	1	10

#### **Presidents Report**

To Our Sponsors, Patrons, Players, Partners & Families, Life Members and Supporters. Thank you all for your efforts and support in making the 2021/22 season a successful & enjoyable year both on and off the field. Although we were unable to walk away from the season with another flag having both the 1st Grade & 6th Grade in the grand final was a pleasing result.

Firstly, I'd like to thank the committee for all their hard work this season which began all the way back to the AGM in May 2021. To the whole committee, it's a huge job to keep the club up and running and you all did a fantastic job in making sure everything went as smoothly as possible. From helping the Canning Tigers run the Amateurs football grand final day at Wyong in September to hosting our first ever 1st grade grand final at Wyong Oval in February, everybody put in countless hours of their own time to make sure we showcased Wyong oval as a fantastic sporting facility.

As a club the highlight of this season was gaining hosting rights for the 1<sup>st</sup> grade grand final for the first time in the clubs history. A magnificent achievement. To see so many spectators, Life Members and familiar Bentley faces down for both days of the grand final was fantastic and something we can hopefully host again in the years to come. Whilst a win for both the 1<sup>st</sup> grade and 6<sup>th</sup> grade teams would have capped off a perfect weekend this unfortunately wasn't to be. I'm sure we'll be back again next season to go one better.

To Justin Warren, Jay Smith, Josh Ericson, Mark Petta, Cam McNab, Stephen Cairns and the Captains, a special thank you for your all your hard work over the season on the cricket side of things. It has made the committee's job a lot easier knowing we can leave it all to you guys and we can count on every team being competitive week after week throughout the season.

On behalf of the club I'd like to thank our Sponsors for your support. As we look to continue to grow the club in coming seasons, particularly with the introduction of multiple junior teams, your ongoing support is going to be invaluable. We look forward to continuing our relationship and welcome any feedback you might have.

Finally, I'd like to thank all members of the club for this opportunity to be President again for a fourth season. The club is in a very strong position financially and very stable position both on and off the field. We will keep looking to grow the club and make the facilities better so it's always a great place to play cricket. We have a great bunch of players and members and I'm looking forward to another strong season by all next year. Enjoy the break.

Sincerely

Chris Pritchard
President of the Bentley Cricket Club

#### **Coaches Report**

Even before our sensational Semi Final victories I was already proud of the player's efforts and felt, especially considering how unpredictable it turned out to be, having two of our five team's make the finals should be seen as a successful season for the club.

When I spoke to Chris and Darren about taking on the position of Coach, it was clear that the Committee's main priority was to get some stability back on the training track, which for various reasons, that have been just as unpredictable had gone missing. I was certainly a stable figure at training over the season, I just hope the players also found it a benefit having me there so much.

My aim was to create an environment that players enjoyed so that they would want to come to training each Tuesday and Thursday and while there's always room for improvement, I felt that the atmosphere over the season was positive and I know that I had fun and really enjoyed turning up each week so even if I was the only one, I guess that's a start.

Thanks to the Committee for giving me the opportunity to be able to play a part for the club again, regardless of what part that ended up being it was something I felt was important for my journey and I will be forever grateful for the faith you showed in me.

To the Cricket Department, Josh (Manager), Jay (Selector), Steve & Chris Cairns (Nets) and our Captains, it's been a real pleasure working with all of you. It was a season that I felt could have derailed a number of times, but we worked together as a team and stayed the course, keeping things on track through the hard work we were all prepared to put in, which to me is something we can really be proud of. Thanks also to Helen and Cairnsy's other chauffeur's for getting him to training as much as you did as things always run a lot smoother for the Coach when Steve is there.

Something I feel we should all be proud of as a club is how our 1XI dealt with the change of Captains over the New Year break, in particular Manny, Mitch, Travis, the Fanayan Brothers, Jack & Adam, your input and assistance over those few weeks was invaluable and you all deserve a lot of the credit for how smoothly the transition went.

Manny's defection to Victoria also had a ripple effect on our 2XI with Cam making the hard decision in putting the club first and leaving his role as 3<sup>rd</sup> Grade Captain, which is not as easy a decision to make as some might think. It was one that was made easier for the Cricket Department, because we had a quality replacement in the wings in Steve Paice who I was confident, not only in his ability to step into the role at short notice, but also that he would be there for us and he didn't let me down in either aspect.

A big thank you to my mentor over many years, but more particularly in the early stages of preparing for this season. While I may not have always acted on them, your words of wisdom have always been well received and appreciated and I sincerely thank you for everything you've done.

I wouldn't have even been able to consider taking on what I have if it wasn't for the love and support of my everything, Denise who is with me every step I take and continues to encourage me to keep taking them, no matter how much my body might tell me otherwise.

My thanks to everyone for the season and I wish you all the best for the winter and look forward to seeing you all again in some capacity next summer.

Justin "Hollywood419" Warren

#### **Chairman of Selectors Report**

Season 2021/22 saw the club excel and grow in many ways and this was rewarded with our best season in 6 years with the club playing in three grand finals and hosting a 1<sup>st</sup> grade final for the first time ever. No new flags on the wall is a disappointment for sure but one gets the sense that we are not far away at all from breaking down the wall.

Leadership started right at the top of the playing group with the club captaincy revived by Manual Hunwick, who led his team and club with distinction until a career move saw him shift to Melbourne at the Christmas break. A replacement would not be easy to find as these were already big shoes to fill, the cricket department (Josh and Hol) over the summer recess interviewed prospective candidates and the choice was unanimous. The enthusiasm and passion Manny brought to the group was continued by Mitchell Crew, who took over the reins with aplomb and generated a spirit of togetherness within the team not seen for many a season. There can be no doubt that this is the leadership that saw Mitch single-handedly pull his team over the line in the greatest finals come-from-nowhere win in club history, the captain taking the last three wickets in the space of 7 balls to win by 3 runs.

The recruitment of Travis Keys from Bayswater Morley CC was the club's big off-season signing with Joshua Ericson taking on the challenging role as cricket manager and doing a fine job, getting contracts signed and reigning in captains (get those fielding votes in) with strong emphasis on maintaining standards and club tradition which was duly heeded for the most part, without Josh we wouldn't have got to where we did and nor would we have significant funds in the fines kitty for a bus trip.

Travis certainly wasted no time making his impression on WASTCA, peeling off a century in his club debut, 119 v Balcatta (117b, 9x fours, 4x sixes). Travis is the third ever BCC player to tonne up on debut, after Dave Berry and Paul Inkster. Together with great mate Manuel, Bentley's batting was stronger than ever with both players in the top 3 1st grade run scorers by Christmas as Manny followed suit with a century in round 3, finishing up with 333@66.60 by Christmas to take out the average award by some margin. Trav finished with 422@35.17 and evergreen Awais Mehdi stepped up to the plate after Christmas as well, taking the aggregate award with 441@33.92. Veteran Omo Fanayan recovered from a lean run to play a key role in the middle order making 235@19.58 and we added Nishanth Sampath as an aggressive opening option (225@22.5) in partnership with Jack Duffy who also produced 206@18.73, some great figures for openers. Dangerous Ish Khan also continued to improve as a batsman, his lower order runs (191@27.29) a huge contribution in a season of tight results, none more so than the semi-final against High Wycombe where a 100 run 7th wicket stand with Fab Fanayan playing the innings of his season set an impressive victory target. Such a long list of successful batsmen proves how evenly the boys contributed to the team with special mention to Cam Daw who set aside 2nd XI captaincy to fill Manny's spot after Christmas and fitted into the team immediately.

Bowling was led by Ish Khan, 24@15.58 and the incredibly consistent Chucky Palumbo reeled off 22 wickets, bringing up 100 1st XI wickets in just 5 seasons. Awais Medhi renewed his credentials as the most capable all-rounder in the competition with 21 wickets, taking out the WASTCA Chairman's medal as well. Mitch Crew perhaps thrown by the captaincy and purely OD matches from a shortened season recovered well to produce his best for the two finals, finishing with 18 wickets. Tasman Harris and Daniel Cheeseman both tending to share the last spot at selections due to work availability, Tas had to wait until after Christmas for his maiden wicket but went on to take 12 wickets in his last 5 matches.

The second side saw the return of BCC Life member, premiership captain Steven Paice, returning to the club after departing at the end of 2016/17. He brought with him son Tye O'Connell and journeyman Bobby Banerjee joined the team. Young gun Benny Whelpdale who started in the fours more or less bashed the door down with 151 runs in three consecutive innings to join his mate Tye in the twos, Ben acquitted himself so well he made his 1st XI debut a month later. With the likes of Rex McCormack and Fletcher Ghandour bowling wheels and bouncing around in the covers the twos looked practically youthful in the field. Steve's return was fortuitous as the team found itself needing a new captain to replace the elevated Daw and Paicey was an automatic pick.

The batting order proved to be somewhat fragile, with the side only once producing more than one 50+ partnership to an innings. One player did stand up and saw far more deliveries than anyone else in the team, evergreen Chris Pritchard 281@28.10 showing everyone the right temperament and pace to play two-day matches. Pritchy involved himself in 4 of 8 team half century stands and the only century stand. Ben Whelpdale exhibited this trait too and with 149@29.8 from just 5 innings his days of carpet cricket are well and truly finished.

MB Rauf had been keen to step up his game to turf level having played threes last season and bowled some match turning spells for the side as the first-choice spin option with 13 wickets. Mauneek Solanki (12@11.67) was the most potent bowler in the side, but fatherhood saw him depart halfway through round five leaving Josh Ericson (15 wickets) without an opening partner. Despite some new ball hesitancy Jay Smith adjusted to the role and kept things consistent to end up taking 19@15.58. Andrew Stace and Ali Khan also gained more valuable turf experience as Lucky Singh and Austin Keyte made impressive cameos, hopefully to see more cricket at twos level in the seasons to come. The twos also enjoyed the services of Umpire Chris Lockyer for many matches this season and Wingnut was certainly regarded by both sides as one of the better umpires in third grade.

The threes were on a mission this season under UJ Bhan and finals was always front and center of the captain's mind. Team guru Tony Magill continued to build his cult status amongst the young Indian side, bowling spells of unnerving length and consistency and apparently out-sprinting teammates in the field much to the mirth of the slips cordon. Tony's one match elevation to the twos cost him the bowling average trophy for 3rd XI: including three finals he produced 19@13.79 with the ball and 248@22.55 with the bat which are outstanding numbers. Forming a double act with Tony in the all-rounder stakes was Jonty Saini, the aggressive middle order batter, producing 276@23.00 and his three-step quicks rendering 24 victims @14.42, certainly putting him in consideration for higher honours next season. Surprise packet for the season was Maaz Hassan, batting at most positions in the order finishing with 263 runs and winning the average award as well as taking the gloves in the team proving to be a most versatile cricketer. Steady at the top of the order was Lucky Singh, making 180 runs against the new ball and significantly increasing his bowling workload to 61 overs, snaring 11 wickets in the process. The dynamic duo of Jithu and Mahendra came into the club in November and worked their way up from the fours to make finals spots in the threes. Captain Bhan had a comparatively lean season with the ball, possibly committing the cardinal sin of a bowling captain and underbowling but all such misgivings were cast aside come the semi-final, ball in hand the captain blew South Perth out of the water with a spell of 9.1-3-11-5. Captain Bhan was also able to source a large quantity of top up players throughout the season when we were short of numbers to fill-in with the threes and without this capacity, we would not have been able to keep five sides on the park. Simply put this side on it's day was a head above the remainder of the grade but unfortunately coming up against the Subjaco Marist side, head and shoulders above the grade the Bentley side came off second best in both encounters.

Fours this season continued in 7th grade and the volatility of selections and varying strength of opposition proved to be a challenge for Keg McKeig and deputy Darren Leng. A side consisting of experienced heads and young developers struggled to compete in some fixtures, but nonetheless important lessons were learnt, and no doubt wisdom imparted to a new generation of Bentley Blues which is what it's all about. Batting was led by the trio of McKeig (224@28), Beauscasin (209@19) and Daquino (180@18) and the aforementioned Whelpdale also carved out 160@40 in 4 digs before the selectors pounced. Jason Marlborough returned to the side and Austin Ketye played some impressive innings with flashes of inconsistent brilliance seen elsewhere. The captain always ensured everyone got picked as a bat or a bowler, so resultingly Darren Leng cemented as the opening bowler didn't get many chances with the blade. He certainly made up for that with the ball in hand, the sultan of swing following up a 5fa with a 7fa to have an astonishing 17 wickets at the end of November. Unfortunately, the big hauls dried up from there with the bread and butter two day fixtures being removed and only limited overs available to bowl. Nevertheless, Lengy finished up with 21@21.81 from a whopping 105 overs, bowling 22% of the side's deliveries. Club legend Greg Nairn returned to play with his beloved Blues after an 11 year absence and between injuries and work commitments he continued bowling with his wily ways, even playing alongside son Josh in the last game of the year we certainly hope to retain them both next season. Clint McMurray was called upon to bowl in a more frontline role and increased his workload but unfortunately was not rewarded with wickets accordingly. Debutant Jake Hall, alongside Laurie Gray and Thomas Watson all got important overs under the belt which should increase next season. Cam McNab was gloved most of the time so primary spin duties fell to captain McKeig who produced 14@16.36 and will be hoping to play less of a spearhead role in seasons to come.

The One Day side certainly struggled this season, both due to the increasing standard (and youth!) of teams competing in OD2 competition and the difficulty in establishing a consistent 'core' of players for the side. Captain/Coach Justin Warren was at the helm and joined by VC of old Geoff Dart they were able to keep the spirits up as the chorus line of legends lined up for yet another season occupying Maniana, the spiritual home of Bentley old boys. PC and Les Saxon, Simon Cleary, Freighter Hewitt, Shearing, Dungey, Vlismas, Harmer, names that have appeared in many a yearbook report over the last two decades. Unfortunately, it wasn't to be as the side finished with the wooden spoon with two wins and a regrettable forfeit. Selections towards the end of the season became more of a ring around and the side was sent out with less than eleven men on occasions. Highlights were few and far between but the Holly tonning up in the last match, putting on a century opening stand with Freighter was memorable. Hol's heroics delivered the batting trophy with 270@33.75, Freighter as well finished with 199@22.11 and rounding out the top three was Kieran Smith's 151@30.20 from six appearances, including a match winning 44 to anchor the innings in the team's best win of the season to chase 200 against Western Suburbs. The stats page will tell the story as the batting pretty much stopped there depending on who was in or out any particular week.

Bowling wise PC and Les continued their opening partnership and bowled 35% of the side's deliveries between themselves from the 24 bowlers used. Poles were hard to come by as the team took an average 6 wickets per match. So much so McNab's 6/14 placed him equal 4th on wicket tally from 6.5 overs in the season. Matt Harmer also took 9@16.00 but could only manage 4 matches around work commitments. Enthusiasm came from newcomers Andrew Pope and Carlton Lee, Rob Ellis and Bryn Holton who we hope to see returning for more cricket in 2022/23. The team was beneficiary to a number of one game ring ins, specifically Reece Coleman, Gordon Naley, Jamie George, Ken DeJager, Jamey Riches and Michael Bowen. Thank you for putting your hand up for the club.

The shortened season was perhaps a blessing as after Christmas I felt the viability of the club holding on to five sides was coming into some question. Commitments outside of cricket seem to encroach our playing group more than ever before. We need greater participation in training, fielding training particularly for those who struggle with this aspect of the game. Catches win matches and we've seen plenty gone begging this season from gettable chances.

Off-field our small but hard-working committee have kept things ticking away beautifully and with Steve Shearing and Chris Pritchard on the hustings we are confident the turf training wicket project will shortly get the greenlight from the authorities. Jesse Liddle sacrificing his own playing commitment to continue building our juniors club is incredibly admirable. Anyone who is curious about the way the club works I encourage them to attend our AGM and/or volunteer at committee level. The club can continue to grow with a larger committee, with a women's team the next long-term goal as well as a fully integrated juniors program feeding into our seniors.

See you all again another year,

Jay Smith #801

#### 1st Side Report

The 2021/22 season started with a sense of excitement after a few changes in the 1<sup>st</sup> grade side from the season prior. Most notably the announcement that Manuel Hunwick would be taking on the role as club/1<sup>st</sup> team captain. Our team had a good mix of youth and experience. With a new leader there was optimism in what the team could produce despite some outsiders tipping a poor season. There was plenty of new faces in the squad with the inclusion of Tasman Harris, Nishanth Sampath and Travis Keys joining after playing for other sides in the WACA competition.

The season started out at Jones Paskin Reserve against Balcatta, where Manuel won the toss and batted first. After playing plenty of first and second grade for Bayswater-Morley in the WACA, we had high hopes for Travis Keys in his debut. He did not disappoint. Opening the batting he belted 119, showing his class and experience would be vital for the team's success throughout the season. Awais Mehdi was his reliable self with the ball, taking 4 wickets to help secure a round 1 win that gave a solid platform to launch our season.

Round 2 we were up against Swanbourne at home. Bowling first we restricted them to 156 off their 40 overs with Adam Palumbo the only bowler to take multiple wickets. The top order went about their work superbly to chase the score in just 24 overs to give us our second win.

Round 3 was another game for milestones, whilst all the bowlers had an even contribution, it was captain Manuel who led the team to victory over High Wycombe with 114 not out, chasing 201 down quite comfortably to give us our third consecutive win.

Round 4 took us to Swan Valley. Winning the toss and batting first, it was once again the batsmen who put us in a strong position. With Jack Duffy (72), Nish Sampath (66), Manuel (44), Awais (37) and Omo Fanayan (42) all scoring runs, we posted 309 and never looked in trouble. With a big total to defend, we were able to restrict Swan Valley, with myself and Awais both taking 3 while Adam Palumbo took 2, eventually bowling out Swan Valley for 143 in a big win. 4 from 4 was a great start to the season, and the confidence within the group was growing.

Our first defeat of the season was in round 5 at home against Murdoch-Melville. Batting first, we never got going. Omo (39) was the only batsmen to score over 20 and we were ultimately bowled out for 159. The bowlers did a fantastic job to keep us in the game, and at one point had them 6/66 but unfortunately, we couldn't capitalise on the strong start. Ish was the pick of the bowlers with four wickets while Omo enjoyed a rare bowl at the end of the day, picking up 3 quick wickets and questioning why he hadn't bowled earlier in the season.

Round 6 was again at home against Wembley who are always a tough opponent, with some very experienced players. Batting first they were able to score 198, though at one stage they were looking at a much higher total at 4/176. Adam Palumbo and Awais Mehdi both took 4 wickets to be the pick of the bowlers. Awais then followed up with the bat scoring 74, taking us to a 4 wicket win with the support of Manuel (49) and Travis (38). Overall a great win against a good team.

Our last game before Christmas saw us away against Bedford Morley. Batting first we were going along nicely at 4/123 but couldn't continue, being bowled out for 147 in a poor finish to our innings. It wasn't a massive total, but it gave us something to defend. We got off to a great start with the ball, having them 4/20 and I was lucky enough to get my first hattrick. Something I'll cherish forever. A couple more wickets and suddenly they were 6/47 and we were in a good position. Unfortunately, just like the batting, we couldn't finish off the solid start we'd created. Bedford Morley chasing our total 8 down in what was a pretty disappointing game all round.

Going into the Christmas break we were in a good position with 5 wins, but there was some unfortunate news. Manuel would be leaving us and moving to Melbourne for work, which was going to be a big loss in our batting department after averaging 66.6. A change of captain at the halfway point wasn't ideal but I am very thankful that the players and club gave me the opportunity to lead the club for the remainder of the season.

Our first game after Christmas was a big challenge, coming up against the top team, High Wycombe. While welcoming the new year, we also welcomed 2<sup>nd</sup> grade captain Cam Daw to the team and young gun Ben Whepdale made his 1<sup>st</sup> grade debut after solid performances in the lower grades. Batting first we made 183 off our 40 with an even contribution and building a good score to defend. We never really got going with the ball and high Wycombe chased down our score with 5 overs to spare. Adam Palumbo was once again the pick of the bowlers with 3.

Round 9 saw us facing Swan Valley again. We batted first and at 6/89 we were in a precarious position before Ish Khan had a mini cameo scoring 37 and boosting us to 167 from our 40. Some early wickets from Ish and Taz Harris had us back in the game but Swan Valley built some partnerships to get to 7/154 before Ish once again proved his worth, getting the next 2 before a run out sealed the win, bowling the opposition out for 164 in a nail-biting finish.

With the WA border due to re-open in early February, the WASTCA made the decision to shorten the season from 12 games to 11 and all remaining games were to be played as one day games besides finals. This meant we only had 2 games left to secure our spot in the top 4 and finals. 2 wins would cement our spot whilst 1 still left room for another team to leapfrog us.

That in mind, round 10 we were up against South Perth who were sitting bottom of the ladder. Although it was an important game to win, I think a few of us thought it would be a walk over and that wasn't the case. We batted first and never got going. Some silly shots and clumps of wickets meant we only scored 124, Awais the only player to get a decent score of 52 with no one to support him. Our bowlers did all they could to keep us in the game and when we had them 7/95 we were in with a chance. Once again, we just couldn't close out the good start and they got over the line still 7 down. A loss meant one game left and a must win to get us through to the finals.

Our last regular season game seen us up against Subiaco Marist. It was scorching hot, and we were a little surprised when we lost the toss and were put into bat. With the pressure of needing a win I was very pleased with how the top order took the game away from the opposition. Awais (90) and Nish (89) put on a display of power hitting, taking us to a very strong 252 off our 40 overs. Taz Harris was dominant with 4 wickets, eventually bowling them out for 170 and securing the win. With that we finished 3<sup>rd</sup> and qualified for finals which was fantastic.

The semi-final would have to be one of the most memorable games I have been a part of. We were up against High Wycombe, who had just beaten us and were in good form. I won the toss and decided to have a bat. We got off to a reasonable start with Trav getting to 50 but at 5/127 we still had some work to do to post a competitive total. In come Fab and Ish. Fab was under some duress, recovering from gastro he was superb to bat as long as he did, scoring 60 at a crucial point of the game. Ish was a fine partner, scoring 53 in an entertaining innings. A great partnership that gave us a competitive total of 272.

We returned on Sunday with confidence but knew it would be an arm wrestle. They were 4/96 shortly after lunch and the game was in the balance. HW started to build a couple of partnerships and despite our best efforts they were suddenly 6/229, the game and the final was slipping away from us. Chucky and Awais worked hard all day but HW were still able to score runs with ease. At 6/269 the game was against us, but what happened in the next 10 minutes will be remembered for a long time to come. Trav took a nice stumping off of Awais's bowling and they were 7/270. First ball of my over I got a wicket, and the belief grew a little. We took the risk and put a slip in for the new batter, and it paid off! 4th ball I got the edge and Duff took a great catch. 9/270 and suddenly it was game on. Awais was to bowl again, first ball the batsmen hit it straight to me at cover and called yes, taking off immediately. The ball bounced nicely into my hands and I threw it in to Trav. As if it was in slow motion it clipped the top of the stumps and the umpires finger went up. Disbelief. We were off celebrating, pulling off an absolute miracle to bowl out HW for 270. The grand final awaited us after an incredible win!

Grand final week got off to a great start, finding out that the game would be played at Wyong was a massive occasion for the club. We were playing Wembley after they had a strong win over Murdoch-Melville in their semi. Unfortunately, I lost the toss and they wanted to bat first. They had a very strong batting line up and we knew we'd have to grind away. We started well but they were up for the fight, building partnerships they were able to score 246 from their 80 overs. Ish, Taz, Chucky and Awais all took 2 wickets and bowled exceptionally well throughout the whole day.

We arrived on Sunday with a big task in front of us but also looking forward to it. We lost an early wicket before Trav and Duff put on a mini partnership to get us to 1/47. From there it was a common theme of regular wickets. Wickets fell at intervals and we couldn't build any meaningful partnerships to challenge Wembley. Ultimately, we were bowled out for 191 in a disappointing batting display. That being said, I am incredibly pleased and proud of the guys for getting as far as we did in a season that threw up a lot of challenges.

I'd like to say thank you to the committee and Justin Warren for giving me the opportunity to captain the team after Christmas, although it was unplanned and unexpected, I thoroughly enjoyed the challenge, and I was able to learn a lot that I hope will lead into next season. Thank you to all the guys who were a part of the 1<sup>st</sup> grade team, to only have 14 players play 1<sup>st</sup> grade for the whole season showed that we have a great bunch of guys that will hold us in good shape for the future. In saying that I think the club has a lot of talent coming through and we are in a good position for future years to come. Thank you to everyone involved in the day to day running of the club, without you guys none of this would be possible, all the behind-the-scenes activity doesn't go unnoticed, so I thank you for another great season. I hope we all enjoy the off season and come back hungry to go one step further in 2022/23.

Mitch Crew

## 1<sup>st</sup> Side Batting and Partnerships

Player	M	ı	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Mehdi, Awais	13	13	0	90	441	33.92	4	0	40	15	1	0	0	8
Keys, Travis	12	12	0	119	422	35.17	1	1	54	6	16	6	2	106
Hunwick, Manuel	7	7	2	114*	333	66.60	0	1	47	1	1	0	1	32
Fanayan, Omid	13	13	1	46	235	19.58	0	0	24	2	4	0	0.5	73
Sampath, Nishanth	11	10	0	89	225	22.50	2	0	26	2	3	0	0.5	15
Duffy, Jack	11.5	11	0	72	206	18.73	1	0	17	3	4	0	0	23
Khan, Ishfaq	13	11	4	53	191	27.29	1	0	14	2	1	0	2	74
Fanayan, Fab	13	12	2	60	150	15.00	1	0	12	0	9	0	0	56
Daw, Cameron	6	6	1	32	92	18.40	0	0	8	1	1	0	0	18
Palumbo, Adam	13	10	3	13	70	10.00	0	0	6	1	3	0	0.5	25
Harris, Tasman	10	6	0	21	42	7.00	0	0	4	1	3	0	0	21
Crew, Mitchell J	13	7	6	8*	16	16.00	0	0	1	0	3	0	1.5	29
Cheeseman, Daniel	8.5	3	1	2*	2	1.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	6
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	1	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	9

## **Partnerships**

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	110	Jack Duffy* - Nishanth Sampath	4	Swan Valley
2	93	Travis Keys* - Manuel Hunwick	1	Balcatta
3	135	Nishanth Sampath* - Awais Mehdi	11	Subiaco Marist
4	39	Nishanth Sampath - Cameron Daw*	11	Subiaco Marist
5	72	Awais Mehdi - Omid Fanayan*	4	Swan Valley
6	47	Awais Mehdi - Fab Fanayan*	6	Wembley Districts
7	100	Fab Fanayan - Ishfaq Khan*	SF	High Wycombe
8	22*	Ishfaq Khan* - Adam Palumbo*	9	Swan Valley
9	30	Ishfaq Khan - Tasman Harris*	GF	Wembley Districts
10	18	Tasman Harris - Daniel Cheeseman*	5	Murdoch University Melville
10	18	Tasman Harris - Mitchell Crew*	GF	Wembley Districts

#### 1st Side Bowling

Player	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Khan, Ishfaq	815	29	24	374	15.58	4/52	0	0	33.96	2.75
Palumbo, Adam	774	18	22	461	20.95	4/39	0	0	35.18	3.57
Mehdi, Awais	948	29	21	507	24.14	4/29	0	0	45.14	3.21
Crew, Mitchell J	679	30	18	405	22.50	3/15	0	0	37.72	3.58
Harris, Tasman	502	16	12	318	26.50	4/27	0	0	41.83	3.80
Cheeseman, Daniel	250	6	4	178	44.50	2/24	0	0	62.50	4.27
Fanayan, Omid	37	2	3	15	5.00	3/6	0	0	12.33	2.43
Hunwick, Manuel	84	1	1	44	44.00	1/15	0	0	84.00	3.14
Sampath, Nishanth	6	0	0	2	NA	0/2	0	0	NA	2.00
Fanayan, Fab	6	0	0	9	NA	0/9	0	0	NA	9.00

#### 2<sup>nd</sup> Side Report

I started the season playing in Byford as I have been since 2017 after moving away from the mighty Blues when the commute became too difficult. Early in the season, a chance conversation with my mate and BCC president Chris Pritchard presented the opportunity for my son Tye to play senior cricket at Bentley. One thing led to another and I was lucky enough to return to the club that has been a great part of my life.

It was interesting and fun to catch up with old faces and meet new ones as well, and I was looking forward to easing back into some cricket. My hope for easing back into one of the less serious grades was dashed on the first selection night, as I met skipper Cam Daw for the first time, and he told me that Tye and I would be playing third grade! It was a challenge we were both keen to tackle, and a good chance to return to turf cricket for me.

The side had started strongly with wins against Balcatta and Swanbourne and in my first game back in Round 3, I was lucky enough to walk onto Wyong Oval to take on old foes High Wycombe. The side had players experienced in turf cricket at Bentley in Cam Daw, Chris Pritchard, Mauneek Solanki, Josh Ericson, Jay Smith and Andrew Stace along with some new faces like Ali Khan, Bobby Banerjee, Bazi Rauf and Tye O'Connell. While we fought hard and controlled periods of play, we were unable to keep the consistency up against a good side which became a theme.

Round 4 saw another game at Wyong against Swan Valley, and we were dominant with the bat as Chris Pritchard and youngster Rex McCormack put on a century stand to rescue the side from danger. Rex followed this up with two wickets with the ball and is a talented young player who I have no doubt will play plenty of first grade at Bentley. His unavailability after Xmas was a huge blow for the side.

In Round 5 we travelled to face perennial contender Murdoch-Melville and fought hard but were ultimately outclassed. Josh Ericson and Mauneek Solanki were excellent with the ball, it turned out to be the last day of cricket Mauneek would play for the season with his wife giving birth to their first child on the morning of the second week of the game! Murdoch were gracious enough to let us pick a replacement bat and while many got a start it was again Chris Pritchard who was the sole resistance. An untimely run-out in the middle of our innings and questionable shot selection by some senior players was telling.

We were on the road again in Round 6 against Wembley as promising youngster Ben Whelpdale made his third-grade debut on the back of consistent strong performances in the lower grades. He showed his talent as the side started well being 0-63 and setting the platform for a huge score at one of the competition's best grounds. However, another runout started a slump and Wembley's experienced and disciplined opposition bowling attack restricted us to 152 which was about 75 runs below par and was likely going to be tough to defend. The bowling and fielding were very good, and the attitude didn't wane, but Wembley fought hard early and then cashed in after they'd passed our score. Their final score of 6/288 didn't reflect how competitive we were for the first 65 overs in the field. Fletcher Ghandour and Josh Ericson were outstanding with the ball while Jay Smith and Bazi Rauf also showed promising signs.

We went into the last game before Xmas against Bedford Morley at 3-3 and knowing that a win would either have us in the top four or just outside going into the break. We bowled first in favourable conditions and had them 9-77 as the pace quartet of Ericson, Smith, Ghandour and skipper Daw (giving up the gloves in a brilliant move) had the opposition on the ropes. Unfortunately, their last wicket stand put on a 50-run stand but 127 was very gettable and we knew if we batted well early, we would be in a strong position. We started cautiously and were 1-58 after about 25 overs but fell away drastically and lost in disastrous circumstances. This was a deflating loss and one that really hurt, and ultimately cost us any chance of building momentum after Xmas.

Over the Xmas break, the club was dealt a blow as A grade skipper Manny Hunwick moved interstate for work. To lose a strong cricketer and captain was sure to be a challenge, but it presented an opportunity for Cam Daw to play first grade. He acquitted himself brilliantly, top scoring in a valiant losing Grand Final. With Cam moving out of third grade, I was given the honour of captaining the side after Xmas which was a great thrill. To be back in charge of the second side for the first time since 2012 was a humbling experience and I was hoping we could repeat the side's flag-winning effort in 2009 when we charged home and finished in fourth spot before winning the semi-final and Grand Final.

On top of losing Cam we found out that Rex, Mauneek and Fletcher were unavailable for the remainder the season which saw us lose four key players but gave opportunities to others. We travelled to Scott Reserve to play High Wycombe and faced an experienced side. We took in a mix of youth and experience and were bolstered by the inclusion of first grade quick Tasman Harris and put a competitive score on the board led by veterans Chris Pritchard and Bobby Banerjee. With the ball we were tight and consistent in the most part, but lapses in concentration resulted in a hard-fought loss. There were plenty of positives to take away from a close contest against a side littered with recent A grade and district cricketers and we knew if we replicated that effort, we would finish the season strongly.

The low point of the latter half of the season came the next week when we made the trek out to Swan Valley on an oppressive day and found ourselves playing on a very subpar pitch, but against an opponent we should have had covered. A slow and measured batting effort saw us score 129 which seemed below par. That soon changed, as inspired bowling by Jay Smith and recalled veteran Tony Magill plus some outstanding fielding reduced Swan Valley to 8-59. A missed opportunity, some poor bowling and the heat of the day took its tool and in the blink of an eye we'd lost the game. It was one of the more disappointing losses I can remember and a real gut punch for a side seeking some positivity and momentum to end the season.

In the penultimate round we returned to Wyong for our last home game for the season with some veterans coming into the side to hopefully add some strength to the team. It was another hot day and we found the going tough against a final's contender, as South Perth set us a target of 210. Glen Hewitt and Ben Whelpdale gave us a solid platform with a patient opening stand but as was the case on a few occasions this season we lost wickets in clumps and fell well short. We remained upbeat and knew that the last round of the season presented a great chance at a win against the bottom of the table team, Subiaco Marist.

Austin Keyte made a promising debut and indicated he could well have a career ahead of him on turf, with him and Ben Whelpdale performing well in a shortened 30 over game as we scored a very competitive 6/144. The hard work and toil of the season paid off with a great win as we bowled the opposition out for 133 with all five bowlers taking two wickets each.

Despite finishing lower on the ladder than we would have liked, the season should be viewed as a positive experience. Young players and those who might not have expected to play so much third grade cricket were exposed to a strong competition. The attitude and positivity never waned, and we fought hard often against the odds, but the reality is we lacked the experience and depth to compete with the better teams. We often found ourselves competing for an hour or two at a time, but not for long enough to produce the results we would have liked.

With the bat, two men at opposite ends of their career were the standouts. The evergreen Chris Pritchard added to an already glowing career record with 281 runs, while youngster Ben Whelpdale came into the team late and proved capable as he averaged almost 30 with the bat. The loss of Cam and Mauneek hurt the top order, and while the team fought hard, we were unable to put on the partnerships needed to be a finals contender.

With the ball, Jay Smith was the standout as the only bowler to play all games; by the end of the season he was a spearhead and proved to everyone, most importantly himself, that he could thrive at this level. Mauneek Solanki and Josh Ericson provided able support, while Bazi Rauf showed enough to suggest he has a strong future at this level.

The young core of this team provides plenty of hope for the future – Rex McCormack, Fletcher Ghandour, Ben Whelpdale and Tye O'Connell showed they can all play at this level and each will take away some valuable lessons and should come back hungry to excel next season.

To Mitch and UJ, you both should be proud of incredible efforts to take your seasons to the last day. While you ultimately fell short, your conduct and leadership as two great young men is to be commended. To Manny, likewise you did so much for this club as a leader in a short time and we hope to see you back soon. To Keg and Holly, your roles were difficult as you were often scrambling for players until the last minute, but your humility and positivity is a credit to both of you. To Cam, you have all the makings of a strong captain, but the finals also proved that you are a first-grade cricketer, so onwards and upwards in that aspect.

Thanks to the club for having the confidence in me to guide the team after Xmas. While the results weren't what we would want, I hope I led with positivity and direction and I am confident that everyone who came through third grade can continue to develop and improve in the future. I am sure next season will present the team and club with more opportunities to add more flags to the wall at Wyong!

Steve Paice – 3<sup>rd</sup> grade captain

## 2<sup>nd</sup> Side Batting and Partnerships

Player	M	I	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Pritchard, Chris	11	11	1	76*	281	28.10	1	0	30	0	14	1	1	34
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	5	5	0	49	149	29.80	0	0	15	0	4	0	0	33
Paice, Steven	9	9	0	31	147	16.33	0	0	13	2	6	0	0	65
Banerjee, Bobby	10	10	0	41	139	13.90	0	0	13	0	3	0	0	8
Daw, Cameron	7	7	0	55	130	18.57	1	0	20	0	9	1	0	39
Solanki, Mauneek	4.5	4	0	48	128	32.00	0	0	16	1	1	0	0	18
McCormack, Rex	6	6	0	55	107	17.83	1	0	9	0	3	0	0	55
Ericson, Joshua	9	8	4	23*	73	18.25	0	0	5	0	0	0	0	10
Stace, Andrew	7	7	1	36	59	9.83	0	0	3	1	0	0	0	2
O'Connell, Tye J	9	9	0	12	56	6.22	0	0	8	0	2	0	0	38
Keyte, Austin A	1	1	0	30	30	30.00	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0
Singh, Gurvinder	1.5	2	0	18	29	14.50	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	5
Khan, Ali	7	7	0	18	29	4.14	0	0	1	3	4	0	0	17
Rauf, Muhammad B	10	8	2	12	25	4.17	0	0	2	0	2	0	1	11
Hewitt, Glen	2	2	0	12	23	11.50	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	8
Ghandour, Fletcher	3	3	0	12	20	6.67	0	0	2	0	2	0	0	36
Singh, Amarjit	1	1	0	12	12	12.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	5
Magill, Anthony J	1	1	1	11*	11	NA	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	0
Smith, Jay P	11	8	4	6*	11	2.75	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	6
Panicker, Tejas V	1	1	0	8	8	8.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	8
Cheeseman, Daniel	1	1	1	7*	7	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Harris, Tasman	1	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Jerrard, Alex	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7
Warren, Justin A	1	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Dart, Geoffrey	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	7

## **Partnerships**

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	63	Stephen Paice - Benjamin Whelpdale*	6	Wembley Districts
2	53	Mauneek Solanki - Bobby Banerjee*	4	Swan Valley
3	47	Mauneek Solanki - Cameron Daw*	1	Balcatta
4	62	Cameron Daw - Chris Pritchard*	3	High Wycombe
5	114	Chris Pritchard* - Rex McCormack	4	Swan Valley
6	46	Benjamin Whelpdale* - Steven Paice	10	South Perth
7	53	Joshua Ericson* - Andrew Stace	1	Balcatta
8	45*	Chris Pritchard* - Joshua Ericson*	4	Swan Valley
9	20	Muhammad Rauf* - Fletcher Ghandour	2	Swanbourne
10	14	Muhammad Rauf - Jay Smith*	2	Swanbourne

## 2<sup>nd</sup> Side Bowling

Player	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Smith, Jay P	624	14	19	296	15.58	3/17	0	0	32.84	2.85
Ericson, Joshua	648	19	15	346	23.07	3/44	0	0	43.20	3.20
Rauf, Muhammad B	522	11	13	309	23.77	3/18	0	0	40.15	3.55
Solanki, Mauneek	353	21	12	140	11.67	4/23	0	0	29.42	2.38
Stace, Andrew	189	2	6	170	28.33	2/28	0	0	31.50	5.40
Ghandour, Fletcher	193	7	5	104	20.80	4/28	0	0	38.60	3.23
Paice, Steven	74	2	3	69	23.00	1/3	0	0	24.67	5.59
Khan, Ali	204	3	3	144	48.00	1/16	0	0	68.00	4.24
Cheeseman, Daniel	36	0	2	20	10.00	2/20	0	0	18.00	3.33
Magill, Anthony J	48	0	2	21	10.50	2/21	0	0	24.00	2.63
McCormack, Rex	102	2	2	64	32.00	2/31	0	0	51.00	3.76
Harris, Tasman	48	0	1	29	29.00	1/29	0	0	48.00	3.63
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	48	0	1	60	60.00	1/29	0	0	48.00	7.50
O'Connell, Tye J	66	0	1	70	70.00	1/29	0	0	66.00	6.36
Singh, Gurvinder	6	0	0	2	NA	0/2	0	0	NA	2.00
Pritchard, Chris	12	0	0	16	NA	0/16	0	0	NA	8.00
Banerjee, Bobby	12	0	0	18	NA	0/18	0	0	NA	9.00
Daw, Cameron	72	5	0	30	NA	0/1	0	0	NA	2.50
Panicker, Tejas V	36	0	0	35	NA	0/35	0	0	NA	5.83
Jerrard, Alex	48	1	0	39	NA	0/39	0	0	NA	4.88

#### 3<sup>rd</sup> Side Report

6<sup>th</sup> grade side were very determined and optimistic this season to come out on top, after losing the semi-final to Subiaco Marist last season. We achieved some great milestones. Captaining two Grand finals is something I'm really proud of and playing my 100<sup>th</sup> game for the club was a cherished personal achievement. Overall, a great year full of wonderful memories.

Round 1 was a semi-final rematch against Subiaco Marist. After losing the toss we were asked to bowl first. It was a long day on the field for the Bentley bowlers, we knew what we were up against a strong batting line up, Subiaco Marist posting a total of 8/228. The blues knew it was an uphill battle, falling well short of a mammoth target, scoring a total of 75 runs. Blair Chapman making 21 and Maaz Hassan on club debut scoring 22, the only two batsmen who scored double digits.

After a horrendous loss in Round 1, the boys knew our performance wasn't up to scratch and needed to change our mindset and act accordingly if we were to have any chance of making finals again this season. Round 2 we played Curtin Vic Park. This team had quiet few familiar faces who've played T20 Sunday league cricket, so we knew they had some good batting in their arsenal. Our bowling and fielding suffered and cost us 203 runs. Chasing 200 runs in 40 overs is already a big psychological challenge. This was an important game for the Blues as a win would lift morale after a humiliating defeat the previous week and a loss could make this a very long depressing season. Our opening batsmen played well, giving us a great start. Gurvinder Singh scoring 25 and complementing him, his opening partner Tony Magill hitting a solid 43, followed by Balwinder Saini making 35 and Amarjit Singh going on to make 36 to win the match in the final over!

After achieving a fantastic win the previous week, the Blues set out to win their second in Round 3 playing against Murdoch Melville. Tony Magill took charge and bowled metronomically for no wickets accompanied by his opening partner Blair Chapman bowling 15 overs for 31 runs and taking 3 poles. Balwinder Saini doing what he does best coming in from a short run up and bowling darts with figures of 17 overs 23 runs and 4 wickets, setting Bentley a target of 158 to win. As the game progressed Bentley losing its top 3 batsmen in quick succession brought a lot of pressure on the lower order. Balwinder Saini and Maaz Hassan took matters into their own hands with the match winning partnership of 73 runs, Balwinder Saini top scoring with 65 runs, result, a Bentley win.

With 2 wins in a row, the blues were building confidence going into the 4<sup>th</sup> round versus Kalamunda. Kalamunda gave many chances but the Blues not holding onto important catches as the opposition put up 182 to win. Tony Magill and Gurvinder Singh bowled 17 overs each and both took 3 poles. However, Bentley's winning streak came to an end as the opposition were too strong, the Blues falling short by 103 runs. Cameron McNab top scored with 22 runs.

Round 5 Bentley won by forfeit against South Perth. Well needed points to stay in the hunt for top 4 on the leader board. Round 6 versus Bedford Morley was a great game as it proved to every team in the comp and ourselves what Bentley can achieve! The Blues posting a mammoth total of 319 to win for the opposition. A grand opening stand by the Bentley openers Syed Sibtain and Gurvinder Singh of 77 runs gave the rest of the batting line up a boost in morale, Balwinder Saini scoring 69, Maaz Hassan with a quick 47 and Andrew Stace with some junk time runs scoring 20. An awesome bowling effort kept the opposition very well short of the target finishing their innings scoring only 158 runs. This was also a very significant game for me as captain and my 100th game for the club that I love.

Round 7 against Fremantle Mosman Park was the last game before Christmas and a very crucial must win game for the Blues to qualify for the one day finals. The day didn't start off well as Bentley only had 6 players at the start of play. Suffice to say, I was furious! It got worse as the game began. Our batting crumbled losing 4/36. Vice-captain Tony Magill steadied the ship hammering 46 runs alongside Davinder Singh smacking a quick 34 before getting out. Fellow pacer Andrew Stace and I batted well in the middle order to get the team to a defendable total of 188 runs. Our bowlers all bowled well, kept it tight and the opposition started feeling the pressure as I took 4/36 and Balwinder Saini also contributing 3/43, defeating the opposition by 25 runs.

First game back from Christmas, Round 8 against Kalamunda, a team who we had previously lost to in a 2 day match. This was a grudge match, a must win to stay in the hunt for finals contention. Winning the toss, I chose to bat first, little did I know that our batting would again fail miserably. Kalamunda's bowlers were all over us, it didn't help that poor shot selection was mostly to blame for the batting collapse, Bentley were on the back foot defending only 95 runs! The Blues knew every run counts and couldn't afford for errors as the game would slip away. A brilliant economical start by Vishav Gill with figures of 7 overs 26 runs and 3 wickets gave the blues the start they were dreaming of, vice-captain Tony Magill the magician carried on the attack with mind blowing figures of 8 overs for 1 run and 3 wickets showing everyone there is plenty of cricket still left in him. Kalamunda were dumbstruck as they thought they had this game all wrapped up. Bentley dismissing Kalamunda for 67 runs. By far the best game of the season, I personally couldn't believe what we had achieved, and this win cemented our spot for the one day grand final.

With COVID restrictions being placed, the remaining matches of the regular season were to be played as one dayers. Round 9 versus Murdoch Melville was a comfortable win for the Blues. Vishav Gill taking 2 early poles, at the other end an experienced Darren Leng bowling line and length, building pressure, which gave Bentley the upper hand with a manageable total of 140 to chase down for the win. Great batting partnerships by Gurvinder Singh, Maaz Hassan and Balwinder Saini led to a comfortable win for Bentley.

Round 10 versus arch nemesis Subiaco Marist. A team we had tough competitive battles against. It was a tough day, losing the toss and bowling in the scorching heat. A day we would like to forget as Bentley could not find a weakness in the Marist batting line up with a wave of young talented batsmen coming in one after another. The blues trying their best as the opposition posted a total of 217 runs. It's fair to say the Marist boys out played us in every way and their spin attack proving too strong as always. The Blues falling well short of the target, Subiaco Marist winning by 102 runs. Gurvinder Singh top scoring for the team with a well composed 52 runs.

Last game of the regular season saw us playing against Fremantle Mosman Park. Unfortunately, I've been consistent on one thing this season which is losing the toss. The Blues were sent into bowl on a hot Saturday afternoon. Some exceptional bowling from Tony Magill figures of 3/16 and Balwinder Saini 4/22 held Fremantle to 140. Maaz Hassan opened the batting and played some unorthodox shots smashing 50 runs as top scorer for the team, the Blues winning by 5 wickets.

Qualifying for the One Day grand final was a great achievement for the team. After an up and down season, our hard work paid off. It wasn't going to be easy as we were playing a top team who have been dominant throughout the year, Subiaco Marist. The Blues were sent into bowl, exceptional bowling from VC Tony Magill getting 3/34 and Balwinder Saini 3/22, Marist were under pressure losing quick wickets but a steady middle order partnership accelerated them to 177. The Blues got off to a slow start with wickets tumbling and the required run rate rising. We needed a miracle to win, luckily the rain came down but it wasn't enough to save us. After a quick discussion with the umpires, the Duckworth Lewis method came into play, Bentley requiring 120 runs in 11 overs. A brave partnership between Tony Magill and Mahendra Kalangutkar of 60 runs, but the Blues fell short by 20 runs. Tony Magill top scoring with 41 runs. I wasn't disappointed with the end result but felt proud of my team, it's not easy winning a grand final but we definitely deserved to be there and we gave it our all. Unfortunately, the result didn't go our way but getting to a grand final is an achievement in itself.

It was a second year in a row that Bentley achieved reaching two day finals. This year we were willing to go one better by winning and going to the grand final. Finals pressure is always there. We couldn't afford for mistakes, playing South Perth, a team we were playing for the first time in the season. After losing the toss we were put into bat, Bentley's young gun Ben Whelpdale top scored with 21 runs Unfortunately the Blues Batsmen tumbled under pressure only making 139 runs. Veteran Tony Magill and myself opened the bowling, immediately putting pressure on the opposition by taking quick wickets, one after the other. Bentley had the opposition in a frenzy, panic in the changing rooms, they had absolutely no idea what was going on. South Perth were 5/16 and the Blues knew the game was ours. Andrew Stace coming into the attack and closing out South Perth's innings all out for 70, the Blues were heading to the grand final!

After 10 long years playing for Bentley, finally reached the big dance. It wasn't easy. A lot of ups and downs but we got there. A grand final versus Subiaco Marist wasn't going to be a walk in the park. A lot of emotions and frustrations in the past, planning numerous tactics to try and get through their strong batting line up, it was definitely an uphill battle for the Blues. I had won the toss and decided to bat first, as always in the past our team has struggled to put runs on the board and with a quality spin attack, Subiaco started off well, taking 4 quick wickets. The Blues were already on the back foot. Good patient batting by Maaz Hassan and Tony Magill in the middle order got us through a tough period before the tail wagged and a handy bit of cameo by Mahendra Kalangutkar and Davinder Singh hitting some well needed boundaries got us to an average score of 148 runs. It was a tough day for our bowlers as the pitch was flat with no sideways movement at all, Subiaco took full advantage of this and played their shots. Unfortunately we could not succeed with the ball and Subiaco chased down the total with ease.

I would like to thank my teammates who have worked hard to get this team to the position we achieved. After many years of trying and failing we finally reached the grand final, that in itself is a big achievement, and my team should feel proud. It wasn't the result we were after but the journey you go through as a team and the bond you create is worth more. I achieved my 100<sup>th</sup> game for the club and I know there will definitely be another grand final down the line. I would also like to congratulate Mitch Crew and the 1<sup>st</sup> grade on a spectacular season and reaching the A grade Grand Final! The club should feel proud of what it has accomplished in these last couple of years. To Chris Pritchard our president, I would like to thank you and your committee for all your hard work you guys do during season, it's not easy managing all this and it requires a team of highly dedicated individuals to achieve what you guys have done for the club.

We are the Bentley BLUESSS!!!

Ujjwal Bhan 6<sup>th</sup> Grade Captain

## **3rd Side Batting and Partnerships**

Player	М	ı	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Saini, Balwinder	12.5	15	3	69	276	23.00	2	0	27	0	14	0	1.5	96
Hassan, Maaz	12	14	2	55	263	21.92	1	0	23	0	5	0	1.5	34
Magill, Anthony J	11	12	1	46	248	22.55	0	0	30	2	7	0	1	34
Singh, Gurvinder	12	13	0	52	180	13.85	1	0	15	0	5	0	0.5	23
Singh, Davinder	9	9	2	39	123	17.57	0	0	6	2	12	0	1	27
Stace, Andrew	5	7	1	22	89	14.83	0	0	7	3	1	0	0	0
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	6	5	1	28	77	19.25	0	0	4	1	2	0	0	0
Bhan, Ujjwal	11.5	10	3	27	71	10.14	0	0	4	1	4	0	1.5	21
Marlborough, Jason	6	7	0	19	66	9.43	0	0	4	0	1	0	0	9
Sibtain, Syed	5	6	1	38	64	12.80	0	0	5	0	2	0	0.5	12
Singh, Bhupinder	6.5	6	1	19	48	9.60	0	0	3	0	3	0	0	19
Singh, Amarjit	2	2	1	36*	41	41.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	2
McNab, Cameron R	5	3	1	22	41	20.50	0	0	2	0	4	1	0	13
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	7	7	1	25*	34	5.67	0	0	3	0	3	0	0.5	22
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	3	4	0	21	32	8.00	0	0	3	0	1	0	0	9
Gill, Vishav	6	4	1	16	28	9.33	0	0	4	0	3	0	0.5	11
Chapman, Blair	2	2	0	21	27	13.50	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	2
PARIMOO, AMIT	3	3	0	12	22	7.33	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0
Singh, Jaspreet	1.5	1	0	19	19	19.00	0	0	1	1	1	0	0.5	3
Singh, Davinderpal	1	1	1	15*	15	NA	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	0
Khan, Ali	2	3	0	7	12	4.00	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	4
Gray, Laurence	4	3	1	9	10	5.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	10
Salaria, Vihaan	2	2	0	6	7	3.50	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	7
Pabari, Akshay	1	1	1	6*	6	NA	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	8
Watson, Thomas	4	3	0	6	6	2.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	15
Hewitt, Glen	1	1	0	5	5	5.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
Brar, Sukhbaj	0.5	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	6
Warren, Justin	1	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Leng, Darren	1	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	9
Hall, Jake	1.5	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	5

## **Partnerships**

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	77	Syed Sibtain - Gurvinder Singh*	6	Bedford Morley
1	77	Gurvinder Singh - Anthony Magill*	2	Curtin Victoria Park
2	25	Maaz Hassan* - Jason Marlborough	11	Fremantle Mosman Park
3	59	Maaz Hassan* - Balwinder Saini	9	Murdoch University Melville
4	104	Balwinder Saini - Davinder Singh*	6	Bedford Morley
5	59	Anthony Magill* - Davinder Singh	7	Fremantle Mosman Park
6	25	Andrew Stace - Balwinder Saini*	6	Bedford Morley (2nd innings)
7	60	Anthony Magill - Mahendra Kalangutkar*	GF1	Subiaco Marist
8	58	Maaz Hassan - Andrew Stace*	6	Bedford Morley
9	26	Davinder Singh - Jithu Krishnamoorthy	SF	South Perth
10	22	Jithu Krishnamoorthy* - Mahendra Kalangutkar	SF	South Perth

## 3<sup>rd</sup> Side Bowling

Player	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Saini, Balwinder	639	24	24	346	14.42	4/22	0	0	26.63	3.25
Magill, Anthony J	582	30	19	262	13.79	3/1	0	0	30.63	2.70
Bhan, Ujjwal	409	7	17	309	18.18	5/11	1	0	24.06	4.53
Singh, Gurvinder	342	9	11	194	17.64	3/29	0	0	31.09	3.40
Stace, Andrew	216	12	8	115	14.38	3/11	0	0	27.00	3.19
Gill, Vishav	174	1	5	118	23.60	3/26	0	0	34.80	4.07
Hall, Jake	42	0	3	29	9.67	3/29	0	0	14.00	4.14
Khan, Ali	38	0	3	30	10.00	2/9	0	0	12.67	4.74
Chapman, Blair	90	3	3	31	10.33	3/31	0	0	30.00	2.07
Brar, Sukhbaj Singh	54	0	3	46	15.33	3/46	0	0	18.00	5.11
PARIMOO, AMIT	132	3	3	81	27.00	1/14	0	0	44.00	3.68
Sibtain, Syed	102	2	2	62	31.00	1/3	0	0	51.00	3.65
Singh, Bhupinder	194	6	2	126	63.00	2/18	0	0	97.00	3.90
Watson, Thomas	24	0	1	9	9.00	1/9	0	0	24.00	2.25
Hassan, Maaz	12	0	1	13	13.00	1/13	0	0	12.00	6.50
Leng, Darren	47	1	1	17	17.00	1/17	0	0	47.00	2.17
Salaria, Vihaan	18	0	1	21	21.00	1/21	0	0	18.00	7.00
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	48	0	1	27	27.00	1/11	0	0	48.00	3.38
McNab, Cameron R	42	0	1	38	38.00	1/26	0	0	42.00	5.43
Singh, Jaspreet	78	4	1	39	39.00	1/19	0	0	78.00	3.00
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	72	1	1	61	61.00	1/16	0	0	72.00	5.08
Pabari, Akshay	24	1	0	7	NA	0/7	0	0	NA	1.75
Singh, Amarjit	18	1	0	10	NA	0/10	0	0	NA	3.33
Singh, Davinder	24	1	0	18	NA	0/18	0	0	NA	4.50
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	24	0	0	27	NA	0/9	0	0	NA	6.75
Gray, Laurence	66	0	0	55	NA	0/12	0	0	NA	5.00

#### 4th Side Report

Sitting down to write this I reflect on the season just gone, it was another roller-coaster of a season, which started off on the wrong foot seeing us bat first and put a miserly target of 8/115 with Ed dancing and Austin Keyte putting on a 50 run opening stand with not much help from the rest of us. Heading into the field we were confident of defending our score, but things didn't quite go to plan with Whitfords winning inside 20 overs, 1 wicket down, leaving us a lot of work to do if we wanted to be competitive this season. However, we discovered some young talent in Carlton Lee and Ben Whelpdale, so things were looking up.

After the first week we were looking to fight back and get our teeth into the season, it saw us take on Swanbourne. The game was a much-improved performance with us bowling first we started off well. A good partnership in the middle saw us concede 220 from our 40 overs, a little more than we were hoping for. We welcomed back the ever-youthful Jason Marlborough and confident of having the runs chased down. Unfortunately, we fell 60 runs short with some even contributions from most players, with Jason and myself leading the way with 30 and 33 respectively.

Round 3 saw us have our first home game of the season, against Western Suburbs, with us bowling first. We ran into a bloke who took the game away from us at the top, but once we got him out, we managed to wrangle it back to hold them to 214 from 72 overs. This left us confident of having our first win for the season.

However, things did not go to plan, and after a good opening stand things fell apart, with us losing wickets in clumps, and regularly. We did find a brilliant young batsman in Ben Whelpdale, who made his debut 50 for Bentley at the age of 16, batting for over 2 hours, showing control and patience. He was the last man out, with 2 overs remaining in the day, it unfortunately wasn't enough, and we fell 63 runs short, but things were looking up.

Round 4 saw us take on Ocean Ridge and the return of club legend Greg Nairn. Winning the toss and batting first saw us amass an imposing total of 7/252. With Ben Whelpdale promoted to opening, he had another impressive display, making 49. Some solid contributions from a few others, 49 from another new player, Mahendra Kalangutkar, 42 from Michael Beaucassin and 34\* to Jesse Liddle. Nairny's return was looking very good, taking 2/19 from 7 overs, then did his hammy. We were able to take steady wickets all day, with Darren Leng being the pick taking 5/39 from 13 overs seeing us get our first win for the year, bowling Ocean Ridge out for 155.

Next up we were against eventual premiers in North Perth. At home, we bowled first and took regular wickets, holding their strong batting line up to 161, with Darren Leng again the pick of the bowlers. This time taking career best figures of 7/43, from an impressive 26 overs. Heading into bat we were again confident of chasing the runs down, and it started well with Ben Whelpdale scoring another fifty, but we could not help him out, with Tom Watson being the only other person scoring anything of note with 20. In saying that, it came down to the wire with us being bowled out in the 64<sup>th</sup> over, only 8 runs short.

Round 6 was against Doubleview Carine away. We won the toss and had a bat, Austin continued his great start to the season by rattling off a quick fire 51. He was ably supported by Jason Marlborough (35) and upcoming allrounder Jake Hall (42\*), which saw us end on 6/151. Heading into the field we were hoping to continue our improvement. A strong start by Jake Hall (4/44) from 7 overs, Laurie Gray (2/8) from 4 overs and Jithu Krishnamoorthy (2/0) from 3.1 overs sealed a great win, bowling them out for 116.

The last match before the Christmas break saw us take on Curtin Vic Park at home. We lost the toss and were sent into the field, but it saw us put together our best bowling performance for the season with everyone contributing. Wickets were shared around, and we bowled them out for 118. Heading into our innings, we were very confident, but then we lost some early wickets and were 7/70 with only 8 overs or so remaining. So, basically 50 runs, 50 balls, 3 wickets in hand. Jithu and myself managed to get the runs with 8 balls to spare, Jithu hitting the winnings runs, ended up with 27\* off as many balls and I finished 26\* from 21. This saw us take some great momentum into the break, and looking to push for finals in the new year.

First match back was against Ocean Ridge, a few errors in the field, and not bowling that well saw us concede 202 from our 40 overs. Still confident in chasing it down, we were not up to the task, and were bowled out for 103, putting a dent in our finals chances.

Round 9 was against North Perth, who were on top of the ladder, and a must win game for us if we were to challenge for a finals position. We won the toss, batted first and put up a competitive total of 8/189. Things were going along reasonably well, although we were not doing the one percenters as well as we should have. It saw us fall agonisingly short again, they passed our score 8 wickets down with 4 overs remaining.

Whitfords then made the trek to our home ground, won the toss us put us into the field on a stinking hot day, with us only having 10 players. We ran into some devastating batting, with two blokes making big runs (100 and 71\*), we conceded 257 from the 40 overs. It did not help our situation when we lost Darren Leng in the second over (splitting his finger open, it required a dozen or so stitches) – se we only had 9 on the field. I count not fault the team, nobody dropped their head, and I threw them some huge challenges. When out turn to bat came, we started off solidly, with myself scoring 50, but it was always an uphill battle. They bowled and fielded well, and we were held to 135. Again, the one percenters were missing, it is something we will have to work on going into next season.

The final match of the season saw us take on Curtin Vic Park, they needed a win and other results to go their way to make finals. With player shortages towards the end of the season, we knew it was going to be a tough day. We even wrangled Joshua Nairn into playing, after he came down to watch his dad play, and we bowled and fielded well, which held them to 9\*193. Wanting a good finish to the season, things were looking up when Simon Cleary put on a bit of a show, smashing 49 from 32 balls. Solid contributions from all, with Ed Daquino being the best of the rest with 30, but again, we fell short. This time by 30 runs, a disappointing finish to the season.

Even though we did quite make finals this season, we weren't that far away. If we can continue to improve and work hard at training we will have a good shot next year.

Seeing some new and exciting players around has made the season very enjoyable, especially young Ben Whelpdale showing what he is made of, being selected in the first side not long after being promoted to the 2's. It shows that he has a lot of promise and I hope to see him back next year, continuing his journey. Jake, Tom and Laurie all brought something new and exciting to the team and will only improve with more games under their belts.

Thanks to the committee for having faith in me to captain again, it has been enjoyable and challenging. I would also like to congratulate Ujjwal and Mitch on making GF's, even though the results didn't go our way, but still a great year and plenty of motivation to come back again for another crack.

See you all next season

Keg

## 4<sup>th</sup> Side Batting and Partnerships

Player	М	I	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
McKeig, Donald R	10	10	2	54	224	28.00	1	0	19	4	6	0	0	30
Beaucasin, Michael	11	11	0	63	209	19.00	1	0	23	0	3	0	1.5	53
Daquino, Edward	11	11	1	36*	180	18.00	0	0	25	0	2	0	0.5	12
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	4	4	0	51	160	40.00	2	0	9	0	3	0	0	46
Marlborough, Jason	4	4	0	35	96	24.00	0	0	11	0	0	0	0	7
Keyte, Austin A	3	3	0	51	83	27.67	1	0	11	0	2	0	1	32
Hall, Jake	6	6	1	42*	74	14.80	0	0	7	0	1	0	0	34
McNab, Cameron R	7	6	1	28	69	13.80	0	0	6	0	10	0	1.5	60
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	4	4	0	49	56	14.00	0	0	7	1	0	0	1	35
Watson, Thomas	6	6	0	20	54	9.00	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	15
Cleary, Simon V	1	1	0	49	49	49.00	0	0	4	3	0	0	0	0
Liddle, Jesse	3	3	1	34*	47	23.50	0	0	2	0	4	1	0.5	11
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	4	4	2	27*	35	17.50	0	0	4	0	1	0	0	24
Dungey, Donald L	3	3	0	25	27	9.00	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	4
Lee Jr, Carlton	3	3	0	22	25	8.33	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	24
Gray, Laurence	7	6	0	10	25	4.17	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	16
Nairn, Joshua G	1	1	0	19	19	19.00	0	0	2	0	1	0	0	14
Leng, Darren	10	7	5	8	12	6.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0	35
Hassan, Maaz	1	1	0	7	7	7.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	2
Dart, Geoffrey	1	1	0	7	7	7.00	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	4
McMurray, Clinton	9	2	2	4*	6	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	11
Pope, Andrew	3	3	2	2*	3	3.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	5
Holton, Bryn	3	3	0	3	3	1.00	0	0	0	0	2	0	0	5
Nairn, Gregory J	5	2	1	1	1	1.00	0	0	0	0	3	0	0	13

## **Partnerships**

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	85	Simon Cleary - Edward Daquino*	11	Curtin Victoria Park
2	67	Donald McKeig - Michael Beaucasin*	10	Whitfords
3	39	Jason Marlborough* - Michael Beaucasin	2	Swanbourne
4	40	Jason Marlborough - Donald McKeig*	2	Swanbourne
5	48	Donald McKeig - Mahendra Kalangutkar*	4	Ocean Ridge
6	58	Benjamin Whelpdale* - Carlton Lee Jr	3	Western Suburbs
7	56	Mahendra Kalangutkar - Jesse Liddle*	4	Ocean Ridge
8	48*	Jithu Krishnamoorthy* - Donald McKeig*	7	Curtin Victoria Park
9	9	Jithu Krishnamoorthy* - Donald McKeig	5	North Perth
10	6	Benjamin Whelpdale - Clinton McMurray*	3	Western Suburbs

## 4th Side Bowling

Player	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Leng, Darren	632	30	21	269	12.81	7/43	1	1	30.10	2.55
McKeig, Donald R	337	7	14	229	16.36	5/27	1	0	24.07	4.08
Hall, Jake	258	2	9	207	23.00	4/44	0	0	28.67	4.81
Gray, Laurence	186	1	7	178	25.43	2/8	0	0	26.57	5.74
McMurray, Clinton	414	11	6	291	48.50	2/23	0	0	69.00	4.22
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	145	8	5	61	12.20	2/0	0	0	29.00	2.52
Nairn, Gregory J	216	6	5	122	24.40	2/19	0	0	43.20	3.39
Lee Jr, Carlton	162	6	3	94	31.33	1/16	0	0	54.00	3.48
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	155	5	2	99	49.50	1/17	0	0	77.50	3.83
Holton, Bryn	18	0	1	21	21.00	1/21	0	0	18.00	7.00
Cleary, Simon V	30	1	1	26	26.00	1/26	0	0	30.00	5.20
Watson, Thomas	132	2	1	119	119.00	1/35	0	0	132.00	5.41
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	12	2	0	0	NA	0/0	0	0	NA	0.00
Beaucasin, Michael	12	0	0	15	NA	0/15	0	0	NA	7.50
McNab, Cameron R	84	2	0	42	NA	0/18	0	0	NA	3.00
Daquino, Edward	30	0	0	50	NA	0/50	0	0	NA	10.00
Pope, Andrew	42	0	0	62	NA	0/19	0	0	NA	8.86

#### Glen Hewitt - 200 Matches

Side	All	1	2	3	4	5	6/OD
Debut Season	1996/97	Both as 12th man	1998/99	1998/99	1996/97	1996/97	2010/11
Matches	200.5	2	23.5	79.5	52.5	23	20
Runs	3466		345	1292	880	617	332
High Score	117		54	91	69	117	50
Innings	216		26	89	51	27	23
Not Outs	13		2	4	4	3	0
Bat Average	17.07		14.38	15.20	18.72	25.71	14.43
4's	321		29	117	82	51	42
6's	12		1	4	4	3	0
Boundary %	39.12		35.36	38.08	40.00	35.98	50.60
Ducks	24		4	13	6	0	1
50's	8		1	4	2	0	1
100's	2		0	0	0	2	0
50 Partnerships	39		9	10	12	5	3
100 Partnerships	4		0	2	1	1	0
Catches	74		4	34	15	7	14
Stumpings	2		0	0	0	0	2
Run Outs	4		0	2.5	0.5	0.5	0.5
Balls Bowled	3426		228	1392	468	1158	180
Maidens	108		14	42	12	39	1
Wickets	92		2	37	11	31	11
Runs	1913		100	766	274	607	166
Bowling Average	20.79		50.00	20.70	24.91	19.58	15.09
Best Bowling	6/29		1/49	6/29	3/28	4/18	3/26
5WI	2		0	2	0	0	0
7WI	0		0	0	0	0	0
10WM	0		0	0	0	0	0
S/R	37.24		114.00	37.62	42.55	37.35	16.36
E/R	3.35		2.63	3.30	3.51	3.15	5.53

#### One Day Side Report

It's never going to be a great season when you only win two games, but it's a credit to the players that walked onto the field each week and the positive attitude they brought with them, that I can look back and appreciate it for what it was.

We were up against it pretty much throughout the season, with a mixed squad of players with too much experience and others that are still learning and developing, we just needed a few more in between, but regardless of who was in the team we fought every game out right to the end. What meant most to me is that whatever the end result, I had fun, I enjoyed getting out there each week and I sincerely thank everyone for that.

Of the thirty-one players we selected over the season we had six who played just the one game, to help out when we were short and even though none of them will see this, I still want to say thanks because it really is appreciated on the day.

Our batting was led by Glen 'Freighter' Hewitt (199 @ 22.11) who was a rock of consistency in his role as opener, averaging around fifty balls an innings with three partnerships over fifty that included 96 with Blair Chapman in the Round 10 win over Western Suburbs and the season high 114 with me in the final game against Curtin Vic Park.

It was great to have Kieran Smith (151 @ 30.20) available for a few games, with his 62 against Swan Valley in Round 6 the best innings of the season for me, setting us up for our first win and also our only score over fifty until the final game.

Despite what the stats might show for runs and average (270 @ 33.75) I put myself third on the batting podium with my figures aided by a final game 102\* against Curtin Vic Park.

We had some great performances in the field with Les Saxon (10 @ 29.50) taking the most wickets and Freighter (7 catches) providing his usual enthusiasm around the ground, while first season Blues Carlton Lee Jnr (just remember it's Run-Stop-Catch not Run-Catch-Stop), Bryn Holton (3/32 v Swan Valley Round 11) and Andrew Pope (our Most Improved with his fielding) showed that they will be handy additions for the club in the coming years.

Unfortunately, we only had Cam McNab for one game because his 6/14 off 6.5 overs against Curtin Vic Park in Round 7 was the performance of the season and something I obviously would have liked to try again (NOTE: Our ten wickets while in the field included 2x Caught & Bowled, 2x Stumped and 2x Run Out, not sure how rare it would be, but a first for me).

The season also included the induction of another Mightiest Blue with Freighter playing his 200<sup>th</sup> game against Balcatta in Round 3. Unfortunately, it wasn't one of our wins, but it wasn't for a lack of effort from the milestone man who finished the day with our highest score, 42, 2/26 with the ball and a catch to top it off.

Thank you to the Committee for allowing me the honour to once again lead a Bentley team and all the OD2 Players for your efforts and attitude. To my Vice Captains Geoff Dart and Les Saxon, a big thank you for everything you did over the season and to PC Smith, because it's always been an honour for me to take the field with you mate.

While my biggest thanks are for my beautiful Mrs Holly, not only our Arvo Tea lady but my recovery nurse after every game and for supporting me to come back and play another season.

Justin 'Hollywood419' Warren

## **One Day Side Batting and Partnerships**

Player	M	1	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O	FV
Warren, Justin A	10	10	2	102*	270	33.75	0	1	35	6	4	0	0.5	28
Hewitt, Glen	9	9	0	44	199	22.11	0	0	22	0	7	0	0.5	74
Smith, Kieran E	6	6	1	62	151	30.20	1	0	16	3	0	0	1	29
Cleary, Simon V	10	10	1	46	93	10.33	0	0	8	4	2	0	0.5	10
Shearing, Steven J	4	4	0	27	71	17.75	0	0	10	0	0	0	0	1
Vlismas, Michael	4	4	1	24	67	22.33	0	0	5	0	1	0	0	21
Dart, Geoffrey	10	10	2	23*	67	8.38	0	0	4	0	4	2	0.5	31
Ellis, Robert A	6	6	0	29	61	10.17	0	0	5	1	1	0	0	31
Chapman, Blair	3	3	1	39	58	29.00	0	0	5	0	2	0	0	14
Harmer, Matthew J	4	4	0	19	49	12.25	0	0	5	0	2	0	0.5	22
Lee Jr, Carlton	9	8	0	12	49	6.13	0	0	6	0	3	0	0	60
Smith, Peter C	12	10	5	9*	40	8.00	0	0	1	1	2	0	1.5	46
Magill, Anthony J	2	2	0	24	31	15.50	0	0	3	0	1	0	0	6
Holton, Bryn	7	6	0	15	28	4.67	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	16
Dungey, Donald L	4	4	1	15	26	8.67	0	0	3	0	2	0	0	20
Saxon, Les	12	9	3	9*	24	4.00	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	20
Keyte, Austin A	5	5	1	9*	21	5.25	0	0	0	0	4	0	0	34
Pope, Andrew	9	9	0	10	19	2.11	0	0	1	0	1	0	0.5	39
Riches, Jamey S	1	1	0	15	15	15.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0	0
Bowen, Michael	1	1	0	12	12	12.00	0	0	1	0	1	0	0.5	15
George, Jamie	1	1	0	10	10	10.00	0	0	1	0	1	0	0	9
Ericson, Joshua	1	1	1	2*	2	NA	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	2
Zahoor, Ibrar	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Bhan, Ujjwal	1	1	1	1*	1	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
Coleman, Reece	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1
McMurray, Clinton	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
McNab, Cameron R	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0	7
Kaseke, Samuel	1	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
deJager, Kenneth	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	3
Stace, Andrew	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Naley, Gordon	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

## **Partnerships**

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	114	Glen Hewitt - Justin Warren*	14	Curtin Victoria Park
2	32	Glen Hewitt* - Matthew Harmer	3	Balcatta
3	61	Glen Hewitt - Steven Shearing*	3	Balcatta
4	60	Bryn Holton - Simon Cleary*	13	Whitfords
5	70	Kieran Smith - Bryn Holton*	6	Swan Valley
6	31	Simon Cleary* - Carlton Lee Jr	4	Western Suburbs
7	39	Michael Vlismas - Matthew Harmer*	2	Whitfords
8	40*	Kieran Smith* - Michael Vlismas*	10	Western Suburbs
9	12	Blair Chapman - Peter Smith*	5	Wembley Districts
10	20*	Peter Smith* - Les Saxon*	8	Balcatta

## One Day Side Bowling

Player	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Saxon, Les	446	4	10	295	29.50	3/42	0	0	44.60	3.97
Harmer, Matthew J	191	5	9	144	16.00	3/45	0	0	21.22	4.52
Smith, Peter C	492	10	9	294	32.67	3/17	0	0	54.67	3.59
McNab, Cameron R	41	2	6	14	2.33	6/14	1	0	6.83	2.05
Smith, Kieran E	216	2	6	137	22.83	2/18	0	0	36.00	3.81
Hewitt, Glen	207	1	6	189	31.50	2/26	0	0	34.50	5.48
Chapman, Blair	132	2	5	117	23.40	2/44	0	0	26.40	5.32
Cleary, Simon V	349	4	5	329	65.80	4/26	0	0	69.80	5.66
Bhan, Ujjwal	48	0	3	21	7.00	3/21	0	0	16.00	2.63
Dart, Geoffrey	68	0	3	54	18.00	3/29	0	0	22.67	4.76
Holton, Bryn	54	0	3	77	25.67	3/32	0	0	18.00	8.56
Magill, Anthony J	61	2	2	20	10.00	1/8	0	0	30.50	1.97
Vlismas, Michael	120	1	2	100	50.00	2/34	0	0	60.00	5.00
Stace, Andrew	30	0	1	18	18.00	1/18	0	0	30.00	3.60
Naley, Gordon	18	0	1	26	26.00	1/26	0	0	18.00	8.67
Pope, Andrew	18	0	1	39	39.00	1/20	0	0	18.00	13.00
deJager, Kenneth	36	0	1	70	70.00	1/70	0	0	36.00	11.67
Coleman, Reece	12	0	0	7	NA	0/7	0	0	NA	3.50
Shearing, Steven J	12	0	0	11	NA	0/11	0	0	NA	5.50
Keyte, Austin A	24	0	0	28	NA	0/12	0	0	NA	7.00
McMurray, Clinton	18	0	0	30	NA	0/30	0	0	NA	10.00
Kaseke, Samuel	12	0	0	33	NA	0/33	0	0	NA	16.50
Zahoor, Ibrar	24	0	0	36	NA	0/36	0	0	NA	9.00
Lee Jr, Carlton	66	0	0	89	NA	0/14	0	0	NA	8.09

#### **Charity Day Report**

Sunday 27th February saw the annual gathering of the Bentley CC v Canning Tigers FC charity match. The 2022 edition was in aid of the Red Nose charity organisation and Freighter Hewitt played a family T20 match earlier in the day which also contributed funds to the cause. Some of the Canning boys were looking a bit dusty after a bucks night the evening prior and with umpire Lockyer in charge of proceedings Captain Joey won the toss and chose to bat first. Citing a bung calf from "going for a jog yesterday," Bentley president Pritchy was on the book so McNab was recruited from behind the bar. Opening the attack for Bentley was Bazi/Barnsey/Farnsey and Omo, and the second over for each rendered wickets with a stumping off Bazi courtesy Daw and Omo's quicks ripping pegs to dismiss both openers.

This necessitated a bowling change, this time Freighter and Austin bowling in tandem. Freighter's floaters getting another stumping from the skipper and the Tigers were 3/31 after 7. Keyte went wicketless as the skipper again opted for a spin/pace partnership bringing two men who need no first names, McNab and Stace into the attack. McNab struck in his first over, bowling the #4 to put the match in some danger at 4/39. A bit of scepticism regarding the order of bats being sent out was justified as the next partnership hit out at McNab and Stace, making a further 28 runs to be 4/75 at the completion of 12 overs a target was starting to form. The next change would be instrumental as team dad Bobby Banerjee ambled his way to the crease from where he'd been hiding at 1st slip. Inexplicability, his first delivery looped so high above the eyeline the batsman forgot what he was doing and got bowled - followed up with a wide, super cricket that. With the partnership broken the Blues were expecting a spike-adorned grade cricketer to come off the bench to get the party started. It wasn't quite the batsman to fit the description but nevertheless, the #7 was middling plenty. Bobby's last ball of the spell dismissed the #5 for 29 and the score was 6/86 with 5 to bowl. Captain Daw swapped out the gloves to bring himself, Jay, Josh and UJ on to complete the innings. #7 retired at 30 as time was running out, UJ bowling leggies got a stumping courtesy of Austin with the gloves, as the Tigers finished 7/123.

After a refuel of sausage sizzle at the break, Blues openers Freighter and Ericson made their way out to the middle. The boundaries and extras were coming with regularity as the score moved to 0/27 off four. Freighter eventually fell, caught for 11 in the opening stand of 40. Captain Daw joined Ericson at the crease for a quickfire 15 before falling to a catch off the bowling of his opposite number and after 9 overs the Blues were 2/66, well ahead of the game. Next in was Bobby with a brief stay at the crease, and Ericson followed him to the sheds soon after with the target looking large at 4/75 with new bats Austin and Stace at the crease. Both kept the strike rotating and when Stace was dismissed for 11 the score was 5/89. Bazi was next and dismissed for a globe starting some dread in the Blues camp, surely we couldn't let it slip from here. Arguably the club's two quickest runners were together at the crease now with T20 specialist Jonty and Austin to steady things. Inevitably Austin found himself barbequed to keep the drama alive, Bentley had plenty of time but the wickets in the shed was an issue with just 20 odd runs to get. UJ came to the crease and with a 4 and a 6 sealed the game as Wingnut retired Johnty after his 15, the target chased down in the 19th over. McNab came out to do the honours and couldn't get away with the ramp shot last ball as the innings concluded 8/135 from the 20 over allotment.

A few beers between the teams was a great way to finish the day as we closed out the cricket season. Attendance and activities were scaled back due to COVID restrictions but regardless a \$500 donation was raised for Red Nose, something both clubs should be proud of.



#### **Newest Blues**

Tasman Harris	1157
Travis Keys	1158
Ali Khan	1159
Jake Hall	1160
Maaz Hassan	1161
Bryn Holton	1162
Carlton Lee Jr	1163
Andrew Pope	1164
Nishanth Sampath	1165
Jaspreet Singh	1166
Tye O'Connell	1167
Akshay Pabari	1168
Mahendra Kalangutkar	1169
Jithu Krishnamoorthy	1170
Amit Parimoo	1171
Syed Sibtain	1172
Davinder Singh	1173
Vishav Gill	1174
Vihaan Salaria	1175
Davinderpal Singh	1176
Ibrar Zahoor	1177

#### **David Berry Memorial Match Report**

For the first time in the history of the Dave Berry match, it was to be contested in 1st grade. Bentley travelled out to Ernest Johnson for the match with both clubs having their names engraved an even 7 times of the trophy and South Perth having won the last two. With just two weeks left in the season due to a COVID shortening, this was a one-day fixture and the Blues were eyeing off a home final in two weeks' time if they could overcome the cellar-dwellers in South Perth, fighting to avoid relegation.

Captain Crew won the toss and elected to bat, Duffy and Sampath getting things off to a good start, 0/27 off 5. Stockley got the opening breakthrough, dismissing Sampath for 12 in his third over. Williams had been expensive at the other end and was changed for Taylor, to immediate effect getting the wicket of Duffy for 15, Keys was caught nine balls later and suddenly, the scorecard read 3/31. O Fanyan and Medhi steadied, getting to 3/61 at drinks. Medhi was freeing the arms after drinks but Omo was out LBW to Scott for 11 to bring the score to 4/83. Daw's stay at the crease was short before being leg before to Boyle. Fab stayed with Awais still hitting out before his crucial wicket was snared by Scott, 52 off 77 at a team total of 104 after 29 overs with the tail desperately needing to wag. Fab and Ish steadied for two overs before disaster struck in the first two deliveries of the 31st, Ish dismissed run out and Fab bowled next ball leaving the innings on life support at 8/118. Scott started his final over dismissing Palumbo, Harris and Crew managed another 6 runs before Harris was caught and bowled Boyle to dismiss the visitors for 124 with 20 balls to spare.

It would take something special from here for Bentley to reclaim the trophy with a small total to defend. Captain Crew took some tap in his first three overs, conceding 29 runs however this was softened by Khan dismissing Boyle in his second over and Courtney-Bennett in his fourth, bringing the score to 2/39 after 7 and the change saw Awais take over. Khan bowled to 5 before being replaced by Harris and the runs were drying up. Palumbo was brought on after Mehdi's three over spell. Runs were coming in dribs and drabs with the card reading 3/58 after 16. The Harris/Palmubo partnership brough about the double-breakthrough as Harris bowled Knight and in the next over Taylor was run out by a Khan throw to the keeper's end having been called through for a single two balls before drinks, Bentley enthused to have the opposition 5/72 at the break. Harris and Palumbo continued after drinks as Scott and Calmy set about ticking over the scoreboard. Harris' final over rendered the dismissal of Calmy LBW before Scott ran himself out and the score was 7/95 with 13 overs remaining. Palumbo (0/21) and Harris (2/25) had been bowled out as Ish and Medhdi came back to try and clinch victory, but South Perth number 9 Williams had other ideas, throwing caution to the wind he hit out for a quickfire 22 (13) and in 5 overs it was all finished, South Perth victors by 3 wickets with 7.5 overs remaining. Man of the match was SPCC Captain Liam Scott with 3/41 and 22(61), doubling the time any of his teammates spent at the crease. South Perth retained the trohy and the overall score line moved 8-7 in favour of the teal blues.

#### **Club Roles**

President Chris Pritchard

Vice President Cam McNab

Secretary Jay Smith

Treasurer Darren Leng

Committee Lesley Magill

Stephen Cairns Jesse Liddle Josh Ericson Blair Chapman

Patrons Hannah Beazley

Steve Irons

Vice Patrons Keith Chapman

Lloyd Dungey Steve Shearing

Club Coach Justin Warren

Captains 1st XI Manuel Hunwick / Mitchell Crew

2<sup>nd</sup> XI Cam Daw / Steve Paice

3rd XIUjjwal Bhan4th XIDonald McKeig5th XIJustin WarrenT20Manuel Hunwick

Chairman of Selectors Jay Smith

Cricket Manager Josh Ericson

Nets Captain Stephen Cairns

Ground Marking Cam McNab

1st Team Scorer Neil Gardner

Social Media Blair Chapman

Bar Manager Jesse Liddle

Equipment Manager Stephen Cairns

Kitchen Lesley Magill

Chris Lockyer

Curator Mark Petta

Curator's Assistant Les Saxon

Junior Program Coordinator Jesse Liddle

Junior Assistant Coaches Steve Shearing

Simon Cleary Steve Paice

Auditor Fab Fanayan

Statistician Tony Magill

#### **Season Batting**

Player	М	1	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O
Mehdi, Awais	13	13	0	90	441	33.92	4	0	40	15	1	0	0
Keys, Travis	12	12	0	119	422	35.17	1	1	54	6	16	6	2
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	13	13	0	49	341	26.23	2	0	27	0	8	0	0
Hunwick, Manuel	7	7	2	114*	333	66.60	0	1	47	1	1	0	1
Magill, Anthony J	14	15	2	46	290	22.31	0	0	34	2	8	0	1
Pritchard, Chris	11	11	1	76*	281	28.10	1	0	30	0	14	1	1
Saini, Balwinder	12.5	15	3	69	276	23.00	2	0	27	0	14	0	1.5
Warren, Justin A	12	10	2	102*	270	33.75	0	1	35	6	4	0	0.5
Hassan, Maaz	13	15	2	55	270	20.77	1	0	23	0	5	0	1.5
Fanayan, Omid	13	13	1	46	235	19.58	0	0	24	2	4	0	0.5
Hewitt, Glen	12	12	0	44	227	18.92	0	0	23	0	8	0	0.5
Sampath, Nishanth	11	10	0	89	225	22.50	2	0	26	2	3	0	0.5
McKeig, Donald R	10	10	2	54	224	28.00	1	0	19	4	6	0	0
Daw, Cameron	13	13	1	55	222	18.50	1	0	28	1	10	1	0
Beaucasin, Michael	11	11	0	63	209	19.00	1	0	23	0	3	0	1.5
Singh, Gurvinder	13.5	15	0	52	209	13.93	1	0	18	0	5	0	0.5
Duffy, Jack	11.5	11	0	72	206	18.73	1	0	17	3	4	0	0
Khan, Ishfaq	13	11	4	53	191	27.29	1	0	14	2	1	0	2
Daquino, Edward	11	11	1	36*	180	18.00	0	0	25	0	2	0	0.5
Marlborough, Jason	10	11	0	35	162	14.73	0	0	15	0	1	0	0
Smith, Kieran E	6	6	1	62	151	30.20	1	0	16	3	0	0	1
Fanayan, Fab	13	12	2	60	150	15.00	1	0	12	0	9	0	0
Stace, Andrew	13	15	2	36	148	11.38	0	0	10	4	1	0	0
Paice, Steven	9	9	0	31	147	16.33	0	0	13	2	6	0	0
Cleary, Simon V	11	11	1	49	142	14.20	0	0	12	7	2	0	0.5
Banerjee, Bobby	10	10	0	41	139	13.90	0	0	13	0	3	0	0
Keyte, Austin A	9	9	1	51	134	16.75	1	0	14	0	6	0	1
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	10	9	1	49	133	16.63	0	0	11	2	2	0	1
Solanki, Mauneek	4.5	4	0	48	128	32.00	0	0	16	1	1	0	0
Singh, Davinder	9	9	2	39	123	17.57	0	0	6	2	12	0	1
McNab, Cameron R	13	10	2	28	111	13.88	0	0	8	0	15	1	1.5
McCormack, Rex	6	6	0	55	107	17.83	1	0	9	0	3	0	0
Chapman, Blair	5	5	1	39	85	21.25	0	0	7	0	2	0	0
Ericson, Joshua	10	9	5	23*	75	18.75	0	0	5	0	1	0	0
Hall, Jake	7.5	7	1	42*	74	12.33	0	0	7	0	3	0	0
Dart, Geoffrey	12	12	2	23*	74	7.40	0	0	5	0	5	2	0.5
Lee Jr, Carlton	12	11	0	22	74	6.73	0	0	8	0	4	0	0
Bhan, Ujjwal	12.5	11	4	27	72	10.29	0	0	4	1	4	0	1.5
Shearing, Steven J	4	4	0	27	71	17.75	0	0	10	0	0	0	0
Palumbo, Adam	13	10	3	13	70	10.00	0	0	6	1	3	0	0.5

Player	M	1	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	11	11	3	27*	69	8.63	0	0	7	0	4	0	0.5
Vlismas, Michael	4	4	1	24	67	22.33	0	0	5	0	1	0	0
Sibtain, Syed	5	6	1	38	64	12.80	0	0	5	0	2	0	0.5
Ellis, Robert A	6	6	0	29	61	10.17	0	0	5	1	1	0	0
Watson, Thomas	10	9	0	20	60	6.67	0	0	2	0	1	0	0
O'Connell, Tye J	9	9	0	12	56	6.22	0	0	8	0	2	0	0
Singh, Amarjit	3	3	1	36*	53	26.50	0	0	4	0	0	0	0
Dungey, Donald L	7	7	1	25	53	8.83	0	0	6	0	2	0	0
Harmer, Matthew J	4	4	0	19	49	12.25	0	0	5	0	2	0	0.5
Singh, Bhupinder	6.5	6	1	19	48	9.60	0	0	3	0	3	0	0
Liddle, Jesse	3	3	1	34*	47	23.50	0	0	2	0	4	1	0.5
Harris, Tasman	11	7	0	21	46	6.57	0	0	4	1	3	0	0
Khan, Ali	9	10	0	18	41	4.10	0	0	3	3	5	0	0
Smith, Peter C	12	10	5	9*	40	8.00	0	0	1	1	2	0	1.5
Gray, Laurence	11	9	1	10	35	4.38	0	0	0	0	2	0	0
Holton, Bryn	10	9	0	15	31	3.44	0	0	1	0	3	0	0
Gill, Vishav	6	4	1	16	28	9.33	0	0	4	0	3	0	0.5
Rauf, Muhammad B	10	8	2	12	25	4.17	0	0	2	0	2	0	1
Saxon, Les	12	9	3	9*	24	4.00	0	0	1	0	1	0	0
PARIMOO, AMIT	3	3	0	12	22	7.33	0	0	2	0	0	0	0
Pope, Andrew	12	12	2	10	22	2.20	0	0	1	0	2	0	0.5
Ghandour, Fletcher	3	3	0	12	20	6.67	0	0	2	0	2	0	0
Nairn, Joshua G	1	1	0	19	19	19.00	0	0	2	0	1	0	0
Singh, Jaspreet	1.5	1	0	19	19	19.00	0	0	1	1	1	0	0.5
Crew, Mitchell J	13	7	6	8*	16	16.00	0	0	1	0	3	0	1.5
Singh, Davinderpal	1	1	1	15*	15	NA	0	0	3	0	0	0	0
Riches, Jamey S	1	1	0	15	15	15.00	0	0	2	0	0	0	0
Bowen, Michael	1	1	0	12	12	12.00	0	0	1	0	1	0	0.5
Leng, Darren	11	7	5	8	12	6.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	1
Smith, Jay P	11	8	4	6*	11	2.75	0	0	0	0	2	0	0
George, Jamie	1	1	0	10	10	10.00	0	0	1	0	1	0	0
Cheeseman, Daniel	9.5	4	2	7*	9	4.50	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Panicker, Tejas V	1	1	0	8	8	8.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
McMurray, Clinton	10	3	2	4*	7	7.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Salaria, Vihaan	2	2	0	6	7	3.50	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Pabari, Akshay	1	1	1	6*	6	NA	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Zahoor, Ibrar	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Coleman, Reece	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Jerrard, Alex	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Nairn, Gregory J	5	2	1	1	1	1.00	0	0	0	0	3	0	0
Brar, Sukhbaj	0.5	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Kaseke, Samuel	1	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
deJager, Kenneth	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Naley, Gordon	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
ivaley, Gulduli	'	ı	U	U	U	0.00	U	U	U	U	U	U	U

#### **Season Bowling**

Player	Balls	М	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Saini, Balwinder	639	24	24	346	14.42	4/22	0	0	26.63	3.25
Khan, Ishfaq	815	29	24	374	15.58	4/52	0	0	33.96	2.75
Magill, Anthony J	691	32	23	303	13.17	3/1	0	0	30.04	2.63
Leng, Darren	679	31	22	286	13.00	7/43	1	1	30.86	2.53
Palumbo, Adam	774	18	22	461	20.95	4/39	0	0	35.18	3.57
Mehdi, Awais	948	29	21	507	24.14	4/29	0	0	45.14	3.21
Bhan, Ujjwal	457	7	20	330	16.50	5/11	1	0	22.85	4.33
Smith, Jay P	624	14	19	296	15.58	3/17	0	0	32.84	2.85
Crew, Mitchell J	679	30	18	405	22.50	3/15	0	0	37.72	3.58
Stace, Andrew	435	14	15	303	20.20	3/11	0	0	29.00	4.18
Ericson, Joshua	648	19	15	346	23.07	3/44	0	0	43.20	3.20
McKeig, Donald R	337	7	14	229	16.36	5/27	1	0	24.07	4.08
Rauf, Muhammad B	522	11	13	309	23.77	3/18	0	0	40.15	3.55
Harris, Tasman	550	16	13	347	26.69	4/27	0	0	42.31	3.79
Solanki, Mauneek	353	21	12	140	11.67	4/23	0	0	29.42	2.38
Hall, Jake	300	2	12	236	19.67	4/44	0	0	25.00	4.72
Singh, Gurvinder	348	9	11	194	17.64	3/29	0	0	31.64	3.34
Saxon, Les	446	4	10	295	29.50	3/42	0	0	44.60	3.97
Harmer, Matthew J	191	5	9	144	16.00	3/45	0	0	21.22	4.52
Smith, Peter C	492	10	9	294	32.67	3/17	0	0	54.67	3.59
Chapman, Blair	222	5	8	148	18.50	3/31	0	0	27.75	4.00
McNab, Cameron R	167	4	7	94	13.43	6/14	1	0	23.86	3.38
Gray, Laurence	252	1	7	233	33.29	2/8	0	0	36.00	5.55
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	217	9	6	122	20.33	2/0	0	0	36.17	3.37
Smith, Kieran E	216	2	6	137	22.83	2/18	0	0	36.00	3.81
Khan, Ali	242	3	6	174	29.00	2/9	0	0	40.33	4.31
Hewitt, Glen	207	1	6	189	31.50	2/26	0	0	34.50	5.48
Cheeseman, Daniel	286	6	6	198	33.00	2/20	0	0	47.67	4.15
McMurray, Clinton	432	11	6	321	53.50	2/23	0	0	72.00	4.46
Cleary, Simon V	379	5	6	355	59.17	4/26	0	0	63.17	5.62
Ghandour, Fletcher	193	7	5	104	20.80	4/28	0	0	38.60	3.23
Gill, Vishav	174	1	5	118	23.60	3/26	0	0	34.80	4.07
Nairn, Gregory J	216	6	5	122	24.40	2/19	0	0	43.20	3.39

Player	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	BB	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Holton, Bryn	72	0	4	98	24.50	3/32	0	0	18.00	8.17
Fanayan, Omid	37	2	3	15	5.00	3/6	0	0	12.33	2.43
Brar, Sukhbaj Singh	54	0	3	46	15.33	3/46	0	0	18.00	5.11
Dart, Geoffrey	68	0	3	54	18.00	3/29	0	0	22.67	4.76
Paice, Steven	74	2	3	69	23.00	1/3	0	0	24.67	5.59
PARIMOO, AMIT	132	3	3	81	27.00	1/14	0	0	44.00	3.68
Lee Jr, Carlton	228	6	3	183	61.00	1/16	0	0	76.00	4.82
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	227	5	3	186	62.00	1/17	0	0	75.67	4.92
Sibtain, Syed	102	2	2	62	31.00	1/3	0	0	51.00	3.65
McCormack, Rex	102	2	2	64	32.00	2/31	0	0	51.00	3.76
Vlismas, Michael	120	1	2	100	50.00	2/34	0	0	60.00	5.00
Singh, Bhupinder	194	6	2	126	63.00	2/18	0	0	97.00	3.90
Watson, Thomas	156	2	2	128	64.00	1/9	0	0	78.00	4.92
Hassan, Maaz	12	0	1	13	13.00	1/13	0	0	12.00	6.50
Salaria, Vihaan	18	0	1	21	21.00	1/21	0	0	18.00	7.00
Naley, Gordon	18	0	1	26	26.00	1/26	0	0	18.00	8.67
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	60	2	1	27	27.00	1/11	0	0	60.00	2.70
Singh, Jaspreet	78	4	1	39	39.00	1/19	0	0	78.00	3.00
Hunwick, Manuel	84	1	1	44	44.00	1/15	0	0	84.00	3.14
deJager, Kenneth	36	0	1	70	70.00	1/70	0	0	36.00	11.67
O'Connell, Tye J	66	0	1	70	70.00	1/29	0	0	66.00	6.36
Pope, Andrew	60	0	1	101	101.00	1/20	0	0	60.00	10.10
Sampath, Nishanth	6	0	0	2	NA	0/2	0	0	NA	2.00
Coleman, Reece	12	0	0	7	NA	0/7	0	0	NA	3.50
Pabari, Akshay	24	1	0	7	NA	0/7	0	0	NA	1.75
Fanayan, Fab	6	0	0	9	NA	0/9	0	0	NA	9.00
Singh, Amarjit	18	1	0	10	NA	0/10	0	0	NA	3.33
Shearing, Steven J	12	0	0	11	NA	0/11	0	0	NA	5.50
Beaucasin, Michael	12	0	0	15	NA	0/15	0	0	NA	7.50
Pritchard, Chris	12	0	0	16	NA	0/16	0	0	NA	8.00
Banerjee, Bobby	12	0	0	18	NA	0/18	0	0	NA	9.00
Singh, Davinder	24	1	0	18	NA	0/18	0	0	NA	4.50
Keyte, Austin A	24	0	0	28	NA	0/12	0	0	NA	7.00
Daw, Cameron	72	5	0	30	NA	0/1	0	0	NA	2.50
Kaseke, Samuel	12	0	0	33	NA	0/33	0	0	NA	16.50
Panicker, Tejas V	36	0	0	35	NA	0/35	0	0	NA	5.83
Zahoor, Ibrar	24	0	0	36	NA	0/36	0	0	NA	9.00
Jerrard, Alex	48	1	0	39	NA	0/39	0	0	NA	4.88
Daquino, Edward	30	0	0	50	NA	0/50	0	0	NA	10.00

# **Ralph Dungey Points**

Player	Points	Player	Points
Mehdi, Awais	604 *	Saxon, Les	144 *
Saini, Balwinder	572 *	Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	142
Magill, Anthony J	462	Fanayan, Fab	141
Keys, Travis	453 *	Marlborough, Jason	141
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	437	Gray, Laurence	131
Khan, Ishfaq	420 *	Kalangutkar, Mahendra	123
McKeig, Donald R	394 *	Khan, Ali	122
Hunwick, Manuel	375 *	Singh, Davinder	113
Hewitt, Glen	372 *	Watson, Thomas	110
Fanayan, Omid	333	Vlismas, Michael	108
Singh, Gurvinder	324	Ghandour, Fletcher	106
Pritchard, Chris	315 *	O'Connell, Tye J	104
Warren, Justin A	298 *	Ellis, Robert A	92
Palumbo, Adam	296	Holton, Bryn	92
Bhan, Ujjwal	286	Gill, Vishav	87
Leng, Darren	276 *	Sibtain, Syed	87
Stace, Andrew	274	Singh, Bhupinder	87
Hassan, Maaz	271 *	McMurray, Clinton	78
Solanki, Mauneek	266	Dungey, Donald L	77
Beaucasin, Michael	262	Pope, Andrew	76
McNab, Cameron R	261 *	Cheeseman, Daniel	75
Paice, Steven	242 *	Shearing, Steven J	72
Smith, Kieran E	240	Nairn, Gregory J	64
Ericson, Joshua	237	Singh, Amarjit	60
Hall, Jake	233	Liddle, Jesse	58
Sampath, Nishanth	227	PARIMOO, AMIT	52
Daw, Cameron	224	Brar, Sukhbaj	36
Crew, Mitchell J	217	Nairn, Joshua G	33
Cleary, Simon V	212	Singh, Jaspreet	32
Smith, Jay P	207 *	Bowen, Michael	27
Keyte, Austin A	200	Salaria, Vihaan	24
Daquino, Edward	192	George, Jamie	19
Lee Jr, Carlton	188	Panicker, Tejas V	16
Duffy, Jack	184	Riches, Jamey S	15
McCormack, Rex	182	Singh, Davinderpal	15
Chapman, Blair	181	Pabari, Akshay	14
Harris, Tasman	176	deJager, Kenneth	13
Smith, Peter C	176	Naley, Gordon	10
Rauf, Muhammad B	166	Jerrard, Alex	8
Harmer, Matthew J	161	Coleman, Reece	2
Banerjee, Bobby	147	Zahoor, Ibrar	2
Dart, Geoffrey	146	Kaseke, Samuel	0

<sup>\*</sup> denotes a player ineligable for this award due to winning another major award

## **Consistency Award Points**

Player	Points	Player	Points
Mehdi, Awais	709	Gray, Laurence	166
Saini, Balwinder	692	Dart, Geoffrey	161
Magill, Anthony J	577	Khan, Ali	152
Khan, Ishfaq	540	Banerjee, Bobby	147
McKeig, Donald R	464	Fanayan, Fab	141
Keys, Travis	453	Marlborough, Jason	141
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	452	Ghandour, Fletcher	131
Palumbo, Adam	406	Kalangutkar, Mahendra	128
Hewitt, Glen	402	Watson, Thomas	120
Bhan, Ujjwal	386	Vlismas, Michael	118
Leng, Darren	386	Singh, Davinder	113
Hunwick, Manuel	380	Holton, Bryn	112
Singh, Gurvinder	379	Gill, Vishav	112
Stace, Andrew	349	O'Connell, Tye J	109
Fanayan, Omid	348	McMurray, Clinton	108
Solanki, Mauneek	326	Cheeseman, Daniel	105
Pritchard, Chris	315	Sibtain, Syed	97
Ericson, Joshua	312	Singh, Bhupinder	97
Crew, Mitchell J	307	Ellis, Robert A	92
Smith, Jay P	302	Nairn, Gregory J	89
Warren, Justin A	298	Pope, Andrew	81
McNab, Cameron R	296	Dungey, Donald L	77
Hall, Jake	293	Shearing, Steven J	72
Hassan, Maaz	276	PARIMOO, AMIT	67
Smith, Kieran E	270	Singh, Amarjit	60
Beaucasin, Michael	262	Liddle, Jesse	58
Paice, Steven	257	Brar, Sukhbaj	51
Cleary, Simon V	242	Singh, Jaspreet	37
Harris, Tasman	241	Nairn, Joshua G	33
Rauf, Muhammad B	231	Salaria, Vihaan	29
Sampath, Nishanth	227	Bowen, Michael	27
Daw, Cameron	224	George, Jamie	19
Chapman, Blair	221	deJager, Kenneth	18
Smith, Peter C	221	Panicker, Tejas V	16
Harmer, Matthew J	206	Riches, Jamey S	15
Lee Jr, Carlton	203	Singh, Davinderpal	15
Keyte, Austin A	200	Naley, Gordon	15
Saxon, Les	194	Pabari, Akshay	14
Daquino, Edward	192	Jerrard, Alex	8
McCormack, Rex	192	Coleman, Reece	2
Duffy, Jack	184	Zahoor, Ibrar	2
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	172	Kaseke, Samuel	0

# **Career Batting**

Player	М	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50s	100s	0s	4s	6s	Cat	St	RO
Dungey, Donald L	610	706	101	117	12207	20.18	44	4	75	1025	76	225	0	35
Shearing, Steven J	289.5	315	54	114*	7279	27.89	40	3	28	619	15	96	0	3.5
Warren, Justin A	267.5	300	38	120*	7040	26.87	27	5	27	713	174	190	7	12
Harmer, Matthew J	370	384	54	102*	6519	19.75	27	2	48	651	18	199	9	24.5
Magill, Anthony J	340.5	352	75	112	6105	22.04	23	4	36	629	172	146	0	34
Fanayan, Omid	227.5	249	28	112	5727	25.91	28	3	24	647	28	132	1	11
Pritchard, Chris	228	249	19	117	4835	21.02	26	4	26	533	7	206	7	12.5
Smith, Peter C	235.5	236	31	141	4511	22.00	19	2	22	518	62	115	0	12.5
Fanayan, Fab	243.5	246	25	117*	4176	18.90	14	2	34	511	30	200	14	19
Daquino, Edward	217	227	29	150	4039	20.40	17	2	17	509	22	34	0	1.5
Paice, Steven	221.5	243	22	144	4023	18.20	13	2	26	443	11	132	1	14
George, Jamie	201	222	16	160	3976	19.30	14	1	18	449	67	85	0	13
Hewitt, Glen	208.5	224	13	117	3603	17.08	8	2	24	333	12	80	2	4.5
Cleary, Simon V	167.5	166	19	130	2738	18.63	8	2	24	250	115	42	0	5
McKeig, Donald R	174	171	15	82	2696	17.28	8	0	19	275	17	87	14	9
Chapman, Blair	235.5	231	59	62*	2280	13.26	3	0	29	188	1	52	0	8.5
Dart, Geoffrey	237	234	41	69*	2158	11.18	3	0	41	168	7	216	12	23
Duffy, Jack	100.5	101	10	101	2064	22.68	8	1	8	234	17	59	0	5.5
Nairn, Gregory J	255	225	72	95	1816	11.87	1	0	28	174	9	91	1	16.5
Smith, Kieran E	55.5	63	10	106	1763	33.26	10	2	6	209	27	20	1	4.5
Solanki, Mauneek	138.5	128	18	79	1700	15.45	4	0	12	184	16	53	0	8.5
Daw, Cameron	85.5	79	6	137*	1654	22.66	8	1	4	197	10	61	2	4
Ericson, Joshua	129.5	108	28	103	1567	19.59	4	1	14	124	3	59	0	8.5
Vlismas, Michael	132.5	108	36	82*	1545	21.46	4	0	7	134	17	68	0	8.5
McNab, Cameron R	180.5	174	41	50*	1528	11.49	1	0	25	121	1	143	5	15.5
Singh, Amarjit	56	60	8	69	1211	23.29	6	0	4	147	20	12	0	1.5
deJager, Kenneth	146.5	126	29	40	1133	11.68	0	0	15	82	6	55	0	2
Mehdi, Awais	48	50	2	93	1132	23.58	6	0	6	115	30	21	0	3.5
Marlborough, Jason	43	44	8	90*	1049	29.14	7	0	4	132	7	11	0	0.5
Hunwick, Manuel	32	34	7	140	1030	38.15	2	2	3	117	7	14	0	1
Leng, Darren	100	84	19	59*	917	14.11	1	0	5	95	3	33	0	4.5
Riches, Jamey S	51	52	4	81*	860	17.92	5	0	4	81	12	19	0	0
Stace, Andrew	76.5	72	13	59	767	13.00	2	0	11	66	17	20	0	1
Bhan, Ujjwal	107.5	86	23	57	585	9.29	1	0	15	44	4	41	0	4
Singh, Gurvinder	26	28	1	61	555	20.56	4	0	3	45	0	8	0	1.5
Khan, Ishfaq	71.5	57	19	53	545	14.34	1	0	9	37	10	21	0	5
Beaucasin, Michael	40.5	40	3	63	528	14.27	1	0	6	56	0	9	0	3
Saxon, Les	152.5	94	31	34	526	8.35	0	0	16	32	0	19	0	1
Bowen, Michael	29.5	29	0	94	508	17.52	1	0	6	54	17	13	0	0.5

Player	М	Inn	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50s	100s	0s	4s	6s	Cat	St	RO
Nairn, Joshua G	60	64	17	42	495	10.53	0	0	12	50	3	25	0	3.5
Saini, Balwinder	25.5	27	4	69	481	20.91	3	0	4	56	1	22	0	2
Smith, Jay P	128	93	31	31	459	7.40	0	0	20	34	3	44	0	2
Jerrard, Alex	46	44	4	57	446	11.15	2	0	5	30	0	17	0	1.5
Keys, Travis	12	12	0	119	422	35.17	1	1	1	54	6	16	6	2
Palumbo, Adam	65	52	12	46*	411	10.28	0	0	9	26	11	14	0	4
McCormack, Rex	25	24	2	55	386	17.55	1	0	3	32	4	16	0	1
Liddle, Jesse	56.5	56	10	34*	364	7.91	0	0	10	24	0	32	1	1.5
Cheeseman, Daniel	100.5	63	29	31	350	10.29	0	0	11	25	1	37	0	4.5
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	14	14	1	49	349	26.85	2	0	0	28	0	8	0	0.5
Keyte, Austin A	47	40	2	60	344	9.05	2	0	11	34	0	43	4	7.5
Hassan, Maaz	13	15	2	55	270	20.77	1	0	1	23	0	5	0	1.5
Sampath, Nishanth	11	10	0	89	225	22.50	2	0	0	26	2	3	0	0.5
Banerjee, Bobby	11	11	0	41	155	14.09	0	0	3	17	0	3	0	0
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	10	9	1	49	133	16.63	0	0	2	11	2	2	0	1
Singh, Davinder	9	9	2	39	123	17.57	0	0	1	6	2	12	0	1
Ellis, Robert A	13	13	1	29	86	7.17	0	0	2	8	1	2	0	0
Watson, Thomas	16	13	0	20	86	6.62	0	0	5	4	0	4	0	0.5
Singh, Bhupinder	9.5	9	1	19	79	9.88	0	0	0	6	1	7	0	0
Hall, Jake	7.5	7	1	42*	74	12.33	0	0	2	7	0	3	0	0
Lee Jr, Carlton	12	11	0	22	74	6.73	0	0	3	8	0	4	0	0
Crew, Mitchell J	27	15	12	19	72	24.00	0	0	0	4	1	8	0	2
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	11	11	3	27*	69	8.63	0	0	3	7	0	4	0	0.5
Rauf, Muhammad B	23	18	7	17	66	6.00	0	0	3	4	0	4	0	1
Brar, Sukhbaj Singh	11.5	7	3	20	65	16.25	0	0	0	5	0	5	0	0
Sibtain, Syed	5	6	1	38	64	12.80	0	0	0	5	0	2	0	0.5
Naley, Gordon	8	8	1	19	57	8.14	0	0	2	4	2	1	0	0
O'Connell, Tye J	9	9	0	12	56	6.22	0	0	2	8	0	2	0	0
Harris, Tasman	11	7	0	21	46	6.57	0	0	3	4	1	3	0	0
McMurray, Clinton	32	18	6	11	45	3.75	0	0	2	2	0	5	0	0
Gray, Laurence	20	15	3	10	45	3.75	0	0	3	0	0	4	0	0
Khan, Ali	9	10	0	18	41	4.10	0	0	3	3	3	5	0	0
Panicker, Tejas V	7.5	5	1	13	33	8.25	0	0	1	2	0	3	0	0
Holton, Bryn	10	9	0	15	31	3.44	0	0	4	1	0	3	0	0
Gill, Vishav	6	4	1	16	28	9.33	0	0	0	4	0	3	0	0.5
Parimoo, Amit	3	3	0	12	22	7.33	0	0	0	2	0	0	0	0
Pope, Andrew	12	12	2	10	22	2.20	0	0	7	1	0	2	0	0.5
Ghandour, Fletcher	6	5	0	12	21	4.20	0	0	1	2	0	3	0	0
Singh, Jaspreet	1.5	1	0	19	19	19.00	0	0	0	1	1	1	0	0.5
Singh, Davinderpal	1	1	1	15*	15	NA	0	0	0	3	0	0	0	0
Salaria, Vihaan	2	2	0	6	7	3.50	0	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Kaseke, Samuel	17	10	2	3	7	0.88	0	0	3	0	0	1	0	0
Pabari, Akshay	1	1	1	6*	6	NA	0	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Zahoor, Ibrar	1	1	0	2	2	2.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Coleman, Reece	2	2	0	1	2	1.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

## **Career Bowling**

Player	Balls	М	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Nairn, Gregory J	23352	1183	639	9281	14.52	8/13	28	4	36.5	2.38
Magill, Anthony J	21144	931	538	9573	17.79	8/35	14	2	39.3	2.72
Harmer, Matthew J	12863	457	364	6734	18.50	5/14	3	0	35.3	3.14
George, Jamie	10064	402	332	4624	13.93	7/18	13	1	30.3	2.76
Chapman, Blair	11673	271	303	6720	22.18	6/27	3	0	38.5	3.45
Smith, Peter C	7381	195	219	3952	18.05	5/25	1	0	33.7	3.21
Ericson, Joshua	6855	190	202	3995	19.78	7/34	2	1	33.9	3.50
Solanki, Mauneek	6776	259	188	3437	18.28	6/32	5	0	36.0	3.04
deJager, Kenneth	6965	266	177	3471	19.61	7/26	1	1	39.4	2.99
Saxon, Les	6174	107	173	4075	23.55	5/23	2	0	35.7	3.96
Cleary, Simon V	5238	143	161	3351	20.81	4/13	0	0	32.5	3.84
Bhan, Ujjwal	5569	171	159	3121	19.63	5/11	4	0	35.0	3.36
Smith, Jay P	5306	129	142	3330	23.45	5/41	1	0	37.4	3.77
Shearing, Steven J	4289	132	126	2232	17.71	6/45	1	0	34.0	3.12
Vlismas, Michael	4859	115	126	3176	25.21	4/12	0	0	38.6	3.92
Cheeseman, Daniel	4626	132	116	2650	22.84	5/21	2	0	39.9	3.44
Daquino, Edward	4052	109	113	2356	20.85	4/13	0	0	35.9	3.49
Khan, Ishfaq	3896	130	112	1967	17.56	5/21	2	0	34.8	3.03
Palumbo, Adam	3606	99	109	2120	19.45	6/25	2	0	33.1	3.53
Leng, Darren	4153	125	106	2310	21.79	7/43	3	1	39.2	3.34
Stace, Andrew	3450	114	96	1924	20.04	6/30	2	0	35.9	3.35
Hewitt, Glen	3567	109	95	2043	21.51	6/29	2	0	37.5	3.44
McKeig, Donald R	2765	77	80	1649	20.61	6/51	4	0	34.6	3.58
Nairn, Joshua G	3113	112	67	1725	25.75	4/7	0	0	46.5	3.32
Paice, Steven	2112	67	63	1220	19.37	4/14	0	0	33.5	3.47
McNab, Cameron R	2116	33	63	1496	23.75	6/14	3	0	33.6	4.24
Mehdi, Awais	2268	67	61	1289	21.13	4/29	0	0	37.2	3.41
Warren, Justin A	2067	69	60	1243	20.72	4/28	0	0	34.5	3.61
Saini, Balwinder	1395	60	50	650	13.00	5/42	1	0	27.9	2.80
Smith, Kieran E	1926	47	49	1167	23.82	3/20	0	0	39.3	3.64
Daw, Cameron	1820	45	43	1111	25.84	4/35	0	0	42.3	3.66
Dungey, Donald L	1278	11	42	704	16.76	4/11	0	0	30.4	3.31
McCormack, Rex	942	16	37	564	15.24	4/31	0	0	25.5	3.59
Fanayan, Fab	1094	31	37	670	18.11	4/36	0	0	29.6	3.67
Rauf, Muhammad B	1118	29	34	521	15.32	5/29	1	0	32.9	2.80
Crew, Mitchell J	1345	55	34	732	21.53	3/10	0	0	39.6	3.27
Jerrard, Alex	597	7	24	410	17.08	4/10	0	0	24.9	4.12
McMurray, Clinton	890	30	21	544	25.90	3/20	0	0	42.4	3.67

Player	Balls	М	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Dart, Geoffrey	489	6	19	395	20.79	4/5	0	0	25.7	4.85
Singh, Amarjit	612	8	19	510	26.84	3/19	0	0	32.2	5.00
Gray, Laurence	563	4	18	434	24.11	4/29	0	0	31.3	4.63
Bowen, Michael	719	23	18	520	28.89	3/13	0	0	39.9	4.34
Brar, Sukhbaj Singh	594	27	16	231	14.44	3/15	0	0	37.1	2.33
Pritchard, Chris	606	11	14	446	31.86	4/30	0	0	43.3	4.42
Fanayan, Omid	418	12	13	277	21.31	3/6	0	0	32.2	3.98
Harris, Tasman	550	16	13	347	26.69	4/27	0	0	42.3	3.79
Singh, Gurvinder	426	11	12	233	19.42	3/29	0	0	35.5	3.28
Hall, Jake	300	2	12	236	19.67	4/44	0	0	25.0	4.72
Panicker, Tejas V	336	10	10	185	18.50	4/35	0	0	33.6	3.30
Liddle, Jesse	396	7	7	297	42.43	2/29	0	0	56.6	4.50
Krishnamoorthy, Jithu	217	9	6	122	20.33	2/0	0	0	36.2	3.37
Khan, Ali	242	3	6	174	29.00	2/9	0	0	40.3	4.31
Gill, Vishav	174	1	5	118	23.60	3/26	0	0	34.8	4.07
Singh, Bhupinder	278	13	5	144	28.80	2/3	0	0	55.6	3.11
Ghandour, Fletcher	337	12	5	173	34.60	4/28	0	0	67.4	3.08
Riches, Jamey S	51	2	4	22	5.50	2/2	0	0	12.8	2.59
Holton, Bryn	72	0	4	98	24.50	3/32	0	0	18.0	8.17
Parimoo, Amit	132	3	3	81	27.00	1/14	0	0	44.0	3.68
Keyte, Austin A	114	1	3	99	33.00	3/38	0	0	38.0	5.21
Lee Jr, Carlton	228	6	3	183	61.00	1/16	0	0	76.0	4.82
Whelpdale, Benjamin M	244	5	3	194	64.67	1/17	0	0	81.3	4.77
Sibtain, Syed	102	2	2	62	31.00	1/3	0	0	51.0	3.65
Duffy, Jack	54	0	2	63	31.50	1/15	0	0	27.0	7.00
Watson, Thomas	162	2	2	139	NA	1/9	0	0	81.0	5.15
Hassan, Maaz	12	0	1	13	13.00	1/13	0	0	12.0	6.50
Salaria, Vihaan	18	0	1	21	21.00	1/21	0	0	18.0	7.00
Kalangutkar, Mahendra	60	2	1	27	27.00	1/11	0	0	60.0	2.70
Singh, Jaspreet	78	4	1	39	39.00	1/19	0	0	78.0	3.00
Hunwick, Manuel	90	1	1	52	52.00	1/15	0	0	90.0	3.47
Naley, Gordon	42	0	1	61	61.00	1/26	0	0	42.0	8.71
O'Connell, Tye J	66	0	1	70	70.00	1/29	0	0	66.0	6.36
Beaucasin, Michael	66	1	1	75	75.00	1/26	0	0	66.0	6.82
Pope, Andrew	60	0	1	101	101.00	1/20	0	0	60.0	10.10
Sampath, Nishanth	6	0	0	2	NA	0/2	0	0	NA	2.00
Pabari, Akshay	24	1	0	7	NA	0/7	0	0	NA	1.75
Coleman, Reece	12	0	0	7	NA	0/7	0	0	NA	3.50
Banerjee, Bobby	12	0	0	18	NA	0/18	0	0	NA	9.00
Kaseke, Samuel	18	0	0	36	NA	0/3	0	0	NA	12.00
Zahoor, Ibrar	24	0	0	36	NA	0/36	0	0	NA	9.00
Marlborough, Jason	84	1	0	60	NA	0/3	0	0	NA	4.29

#### **Milestones Achieved**

Milestone	Player	Grade	Date	Opponent
200 Matches	Glen Hewitt	OD2	30/10/2021	Balcatta
150 Matches	Les Saxon	OD2	15/01/2022	Swan Valley
100 Matches	Darren Leng	7th	5/02/2022	Curtin Victoria Park
100 Matches	Ujjwal Bhan	6th	4/12/2021	Bedford Morley
100 Matches	Daniel Cheeseman	1st	19/02/2022	Wembley Districts
100 Matches	Jack Duffy	1st	19/02/2022	Wembley Districts
50 Matches	Kieran Smith	OD2	16/10/2021	Subiaco Marist
7000 Runs	Justin Warren	OD2	5/02/2022	Curtin Victoria Park
6500 Runs	Matthew Harmer	OD2	6/11/2021	Western Suburbs
6000 Runs	Tony Magill	6th	5/02/2022	Fremantle Mosman Park
5500 Runs	Omid Fanayan	1st	6/11/2021	Swan Valley
4500 Runs	Peter Smith	OD2	4/12/2021	Balcatta
4000 Runs	Steven Paice	3rd	29/01/2022	South Perth
4000 Runs	Ed Daquino	7th	29/01/2022	Whitfords
3500 Runs	Glen Hewitt	OD2	11/12/2021	Subiaco Marist
2500 Runs	Donald McKeig	7th	16/10/2021	Swanbourne
2000 Runs	Jack Duffy	1st	22/01/2022	Swan Valley
1500 Runs	Joshua Ericson	3rd	9/10/2021	Balcatta
1500 Runs	Cameron Daw	3rd	23/10/2021	High Wycombe
1500 Runs	Michael Vlismas	OD2	16/10/2021	Subiaco Marist
1500 Runs	Cam McNab	7th	22/01/2022	North Perth
1000 Runs	Manuel Hunwick	1st	18/12/2021	Bedford Morley
1000 Runs	Jason Marlborough	6th	29/01/2022	Subiaco Marist
1000 Runs	Awais Mehdi	1st	5/02/2022	Subiaco Marist
500 Runs	Michael Bowen	OD2	16/10/2021	Subiaco Marist
500 Runs	Gurvinder Singh	6th	29/01/2022	Subiaco Marist
500 Runs	Michael Beaucasin	7th	22/01/2022	North Perth
300 Wickets	Blair Chapman	OD2	13/11/2021	Wembley Districts
200 Wickets	Joshua Ericson	3rd	15/01/2022	High Wycombe
150 Wickets	Ujjwal Bhan	6th	18/12/2021	Fremantle Mosman Park
100 Wickets	Darren leng	7th	20/11/2021	North Perth
100 Wickets	Ishfaq Khan	1st	18/12/2021	Bedford Morley
100 Wickets	Adam Palumbo	1st	15/01/2022	High Wycombe
50 Wickets	Awais Mehdi	1st	4/12/2021	Wembley Districts
50 Wickets	Balwinder Saini	6th	13/02/2022	South Perth
200 Catches	Chris Pritchard	3rd	22/01/2022	Swan Valley

#### **Milestones Achievable 2022/23**

Milestone	Player	Current	Milestone	Player	Current
450 Matches	Stephen Cairns	441.5	7500 Runs	Steven Shearing	7279
350 Matches	Anthony Magill	340.5	6000 Runs	Omid Fanayan	5727
300 Matches	Steven Shearing	289.5	5000 Runs	Chris Pritchard	4835
250 Matches	Fab Fanayan	243.5	3000 Runs	Simon Cleary	2738
250 Matches	Geoff Dart	237	2000 Runs	Kieran Smith	1763
250 Matches	Blair Chapman	235.5	1000 Runs	Darren Leng	917
250 Matches	Peter Smith	235.5	500 Runs	Joshua Nairn	495
200 Matches	Laurence Paice	190	500 Runs	Balwinder Saini	481
100 Matches	Cameron Daw	85.5	500 Runs	Glenn Davies	459
50 Matches	Awais Mehdi	48	500 Runs	Glen Hewitt	446
50 Matches	Austin Keyte	47	500 Runs	Donald McKeig	422
50 Matches	Alex Jerrard	46	500 Runs	Jack Duffy	411
50 Matches	Jason Marlborough	43	500 Runs	Joshua Ericson	386
50 Matches	Michael Beaucasin	40.5	500 Runs	Michael Vlismas	349
			500 Runs	Cameron Daw	344
			500 Runs	Cameron McNab	270
650 Wickets	Greg Nairn	639	500 Runs	Darren Leng	225
550 Wickets	Anthony Magill	538			
200 Wickets	Les Saxon	173			
150 Wickets	Jay Smith	142	300 Catches	Glenn Davies	299
100 Wickets	Andrew Stace	96	200 Catches	Matthew Harmer	197
100 Wickets	Glen Hewitt	95	200 Catches	Chris Pritchard	192
100 Wickets	Donald McKeig	80	200 Catches	Fab Fanayan	186
50 Wickets	Kieran Smith	49	100 Catches	Steven Shearing	96
50 Wickets	Cameron Daw	43	50 Catches	Shaun O'Shea	42
50 Wickets	Fab Fanayan	37	50 Catches	Jay Smith	42
50 Wickets	Rex McCormack	37	50 Catches	Derryn Rive	41
50 Wickets	Mitchell Crew	34	50 Catches	Austin Keyte	37
50 Wickets	Muhammad Rauf	34			

#### **Grade Awards**

Hayward Medal

1st Grade	Batting average Batting aggregate	Manuel Hunwick Awais Mehdi	66.60 ave 386 runs
	Fielding	Travis Keys	106 votes
	Bowling average Bowling aggregate	Ishfaq Khan Ishfaq Khan	14.62 ave 21 wickets
3rd Grade	Batting average Batting aggregate	Chris Pritchard Chris Pritchard	28.10 ave 281 runs
	Fielding	Steven Paice	65 votes
	Bowling average Bowling aggregate	Jay Smith Jay Smith	15.58 ave 19 wickets
6th Grade	Batting average Batting aggregate	Maaz Hassan Balwinder Saini	27.25 ave 236 runs
	Fielding	Balwinder Saini	96 votes
	Bowling average Bowling aggregate	Balwinder Saini Balwinder Saini	14.05 ave 20 wickets
7th Grade	Batting average Batting aggregate	Donald McKeig Donald McKeig	28.00 ave 224 runs
	Fielding	Cameron McNab	60 votes
	Bowling average Bowling aggregate	Darren Leng Darren Leng	12.81 ave 21 wickets
OD2 Grade	Batting average Batting aggregate	Justin Warren Justin Warren	33.75 ave 270 runs
	Fielding	Glen Hewitt	74 votes
	Bowling average Bowling aggregate	no qualifiers Les Saxon	10 wickets
T20 Division 1	Most consistent player	Awais Mehdi	38.00 points/game
Junior achievement aw	ard	Benjamin Whelpdale	
David Berry Clubman n	nedal	Cameron McNab	
Centuries	Travis Keys Manuel Hunwick Justin Warren	<ul><li>119 Balcatta</li><li>114* High Wycombe</li><li>102* Curtin Victoria Park</li></ul>	09/10/21 30/10/21 05/02/22

Awais Mehdi

## **T20 Season Batting**

Player	M	I	NO	HS	Runs	Ave	50's	100's	4's	6's	Cat	St	R/O
Keys, Travis	1	1	0	64	64	64.00	1	0	8	2	0	1	0
Sampath, Nishanth	2	2	0	38	52	26.00	0	0	4	1	0	0	0
Mehdi, Awais	2	2	0	23	31	15.50	0	0	4	1	0	0	0
Hunwick, Manuel	2	2	0	19	30	15.00	0	0	3	1	1	0	0
Banerjee, Bobby	2	2	1	27*	27	27.00	0	0	4	0	0	0	0
Khan, Ishfaq	1	1	0	26	26	26.00	0	0	2	1	0	0	0
Panicker, Tejas V	2	2	2	5*	5	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Daw, Cameron	1	1	0	5	5	5.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Crew, M	2	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Cheeseman, Daniel	1	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Rauf, Muhammad B	2	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Smith, Jay P	2	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Fanayan, Omid	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Hall, Jake	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0

## **T20 Season Bowling**

Player	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	BB	5WI	7WI	S/R	E/R
Mehdi, Awais	48	1	3	27	9.00	3/20	0	0	16.00	3.38
Crew, Mitchell J	36	0	3	54	18.00	3/28	0	0	12.00	9.00
Panicker, Tejas V	21	0	1	29	29.00	1/11	0	0	21.00	8.29
Rauf, Muhammad B	36	0	1	39	39.00	1/18	0	0	36.00	6.50
Smith, Jay P	6	0	0	11	NA	0/11	0	0	NA	11.00
Hall, Jake	12	0	0	11	NA	0/11	0	0	NA	5.50
Khan, Ishfaq	18	0	0	34	NA	0/34	0	0	NA	11.33
Cheeseman, Daniel	24	0	0	34	NA	0/34	0	0	NA	8.50

## **T20 Season Partnerships**

Wicket	Runs	Batsmen	Round	Opponent
1	44	Travis Keys* - Awais Mehdi	3	Kalamunda
2	44	Travis Keys - Nishanth Sampath*	3	Kalamunda
3	20	Nishanth Sampath - Bobby Banerjee*	3	Kalamunda
4	17	Manuel Hunwick - Bobby Banerjee*	3	Kalamunda
5	4	Nishanth Sampath* - Bobby Banerjee	2	North Perth
6	31	Nishanth Sampath - Ishfaq Khan*	2	North Perth
7	25	Ishfaq Khan - Tejas Panicker*	2	North Perth
8		No partnership		
9		No partnership		
10		No partnership		

## **T20 Career Batting**

Player	М	Inn	N/O	HS	Runs	Ave	50+	Dks	4s	6s	Cat	St	R/O
Fanayan, Omid	40	38	10	71*	576	20.57	2	3	49	4	13	1	6.5
Fanayan, Fab	34	30	7	73*	440	19.13	1	3	38	2	12	1	4
Mehdi, Awais	9	9	0	123	277	30.78	2	1	25	17	0	0	0
Hunwick, Manuel	8	7	0	39	128	18.29	0		8	3	4	0	0
McKeig, Donald R	12	10	1	37	115	12.78	0	2	10	4	2	3	2.5
Warren, Justin A	9	8	3	37	99	19.80	0	1	10	2	2	3	0.5
George, Jamie	2	2	0	64	78	39.00	1	0	7	2	0	0	0
Solanki, Mauneek	14	9	2	20	71	10.14	0	0	3	0	0	0	2
Paice, Steven	14	12	3	16	65	7.22	0	1	4	0	5	0	1.5
Keys, Travis	1	1	0	64	64	64.00	1	0	8	2	0	1	0
Sampath, Nishanth	2	2	0	38	52	26.00	0	0	4	1	0	0	0
Duffy, Jack	7	4	1	28	51	17.00	0	1	2	0	5	1	1
Daw, Cameron	4	4	0	18	43	10.75	0	0	1	1	1	0	0
Riches, Jamey S	2	2	0	26	41	20.50	0	0	6	0	0	0	0
Jerrard, Alex	7	5	1	17	39	9.75	0	1	2	0	1	0	0.5
Ericson, Joshua	6	2	2	29*	33	NA	0	0	1	0	3	0	0
Khan, Ishfaq	3	3	0	26	33	11.00	0	0	2	1	0	0	0
Cleary, Simon V	5	4	1	25	32	10.67	0	1	4	0	0	0	0
Cheeseman, Daniel	5	3	3	21*	27	NA	0	0	2	0	1	0	0
Banerjee, Bobby	2	2	1	27*	27	27.00	0	1	4	0	0	0	0
Stace, Andrew	6	4	1	18	27	9.00	0	1	2	1	1	0	0.5
Bhan, Ujjwal	7	2	1	17	21	21.00	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Palumbo, Adam	3	2	1	19	21	21.00	0	0	1	0	3	0	1.5
Dart, Geoffrey	3	3	1	12	17	8.50	0	0	1	0	1	0	0
Bowen, Michael	3	3	0	15	16	5.33	0	1	0	2	2	0	0
McNab, Cameron R	9	8	2	8	15	2.50	0	2	0	0	4	0	0
Chapman, Blair	5	3	0	8	14	4.67	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Smith, Peter C	1	1	1	11*	11	NA	0	0	1	0	0	0	0
Liddle, Jesse	1	1	0	7	7	7.00	0	0	1	0	1	0	0
Panicker, Tejas V	2	2	2	5*	5	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Shearing, Steven J	1	1	0	5	5	5.00	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Leng, Darren	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	0	0	0	0	1	0	0
Saxon, Les	1	0	0	N/A	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Smith, Jay	6	0	0	N/A	0	NA	0	0	0	0	2	0	1.5
Hall, Jake	1	1	0	0	0	NA	0	1	0	0	1	0	0
Rauf, Muhammad B	2	0	0	NA	0	NA	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
Crew, Mitchell J	6	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	1	0	0	2	0	0.5
Magill, Anthony J	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	1	0	0	0	0	0

## **T20 Career Bowling**

Player	Balls	M	W	Runs	Ave	ВВ	S/R	E/R
Solanki, Mauneek	274	2	21	282	13.43	4/18	13.0	6.18
Fanayan, Fab	211	0	13	208	16.00	3/6	16.2	5.91
McNab, Cameron R	48	0	6	54	9.00	5/15	8.0	6.75
Crew, Mitchell J	111	0	6	141	23.50	3/28	18.5	7.62
Mehdi, Awais	186	2	6	147	24.50	3/20	31.0	4.74
Paice, Steven	50	0	5	53	10.60	2/10	10.0	6.36
Fanayan, Omid	72	0	5	80	16.00	2/10	14.4	6.67
Chapman, Blair	102	0	5	100	20.00	3/24	20.4	5.88
Bhan, Ujjwal	102	0	5	122	24.40	3/19	20.4	7.18
Palumbo, Adam	72	0	4	59	14.75	2/25	18.0	4.92
Smith, Jay	48	0	3	58	19.33	2/7	16.0	7.25
Cheeseman, Daniel	90	0	3	109	36.33	2/13	30.0	7.27
Ericson, Joshua	85	0	3	123	41.00	1/10	28.3	8.68
Cleary, Simon V	18	0	2	16	8.00	2/16	9.0	5.33
Leng, Darren	24	0	2	44	22.00	2/44	12.0	11.00
Khan, Ishfaq	48	0	2	83	41.50	2/33	24.0	10.38
Stace, Andrew	84	1	2	98	49.00	1/11	42.0	7.00
Magill, Anthony J	24	0	1	21	21.00	1/21	24.0	5.25
Panicker, Tejas V	21	0	1	29	29.00	1/11	21.0	8.29
Rauf, Muhammad B	36	0	1	39	39.00	1/18	36.0	6.50
Jerrard, Alex	20	0	1	53	NA	1/44	NA	15.90
Smith, Peter C	6	0	0	7	NA	0/7	NA	7.00
Hall, Jake	12	0	0	11	NA	0/11	NA	5.50
Hunwick, Manuel	12	0	0	14	NA	0/14	NA	7.00
Bowen, Michael	12	0	0	20	NA	0/20	NA	10.00
George, Jamie	23	0	0	23	NA	0/23	NA	6.00
Saxon, Les	24	0	0	23	NA	0/23	NA	5.75
Riches, Jamey S	6	0	0	26	NA	0/26	NA	26.00

# **Top Performers – Career**

Matches		Runs		Run Outs	
Dungey, Donald L	610	Dungey, Donald L	12207	Dungey, Donald L	35
Cairns, Stephen G	441.5	Shearing, Steven J	7279	Magill, Anthony J	34
Farrall, Geoff	408.5	Warren, Justin A	7040	Harmer, Matthew J	24.5
Harmer, Matthew J	370	Harmer, Matthew J	6519	Dickerson, Malcolm	23
Magill, Anthony J	340.5	Cairns, Stephen G	6176	Dart, Geoffrey	23
Hayward, Brian	312	Hayward, Brian	6122	Fanayan, Fab	19
Shearing, Steven J	289.5	Magill, Anthony J	6105	Davies, Glenn M	16.5
Davies, Glenn M	268.5	Fanayan, Omid	5727	Nairn, Gregory J	16.5
Warren, Justin A	267.5	Warren, Paul	5425	McNab, Cameron R	15.5
Lockyer, Christopher	265.5	Arcaro, Daniel	5175	Daye, Brendan	14
Malins, Anthony	260.5	Quartermaine, Peter	5025	Paice, Steven	14
Nairn, Gregory J	255	Hayward, Andrew	4959	Warren, Paul	13.5
Fanayan, Fab	243.5	Pritchard, Chris	4835	George, Jamie	13
Magill, Simon	242	Farrall, Geoff	4727	Smith, Peter C	12.5
Hayward, Andrew	238.5	Smith, Peter C	4511	Pritchard, Chris	12.5
·				Lockyer, Matthew	12.5
Fours		Sixes		Dismissals	
Dungey, Donald L	1025	Warren, Justin A	174	Davies, Glenn M	325
Warren, Justin A	713	Magill, Anthony J	172	Warren, Paul	276
Harmer, Matthew J	651	Arcaro, Daniel	137	Dart, Geoffrey	228
Fanayan, Omid	647	Cleary, Simon V	115	Dungey, Donald L	225
Magill, Anthony J	629	Warren, Paul	112	Fanayan, Fab	214
Shearing, Steven J	619	Dungey, Donald L	76	Hayward, Brian	214
Hayward, Brian	603	Taylor, Chris	73	Pritchard, Chris	213
Arcaro, Daniel	585	George, Jamie	67	Harmer, Matthew J	208
Warren, Paul	583	Smith, Peter C	62	Warren, Justin A	197
Pritchard, Chris	533	Harmer, William (Bill)	61	Tagliaferri, Steve	162
Smith, Peter C	518	Spencer, Kirk	54	Esmond, Ken	152
Fanayan, Fab	511	Sheppard, Gregory	52	McNab, Cameron R	148
Daquino, Edward	509	Fernandez, Ron G.	45	Magill, Anthony J	146
Sheppard, Gregory	481	Hendry, Jamie	44	Farrall, Geoff	146
George, Jamie	449	Welsh, Jos	33	Mills, Steve	143
-				·	
Balls Bowled	0.404.0	Wickets	4000	Maidens	1100
Farrall, Geoff	34219	Farrall, Geoff	1286	Nairn, Gregory J	1183
Malins, Anthony	27730	Malins, Anthony	773	Malins, Anthony	1085
Nairn, Gregory J	23352	Nairn, Gregory J	639	Magill, Anthony J	931
Magill, Anthony J	21144	Daye, Brendan	542	Daye, Brendan	874
Daye, Brendan	19673	Magill, Anthony J	538	Farrall, Geoff	738
Hayward, Andrew	15967	Woodhead, George	524	Shah, Hiten	639
Woodhead, George	14627	Lockyer, Christopher	422	Lockyer, Christopher	615
Lockyer, Christopher	14579	Williams, John	410	Hayward, Andrew	613
Dickerson, lan	14081	Ritchie, Roy	393	Dickerson, lan	599
Harmer, Matthew J	12863	O'Shea, Shaun	390	Lukan, Mark	488
Williams, John	12606	Hayward, Andrew	384	O'Shea, Shaun	484
O'Shea, Shaun	12514	Harmer, Matthew J	364	Harmer, Matthew J	457
Shah, Hiten	12137	Rankin, Stuart	351	George, Jamie	402
Chapman, Blair	11673	Trouchet, Brian	338	Rankin, Stuart	370
Rankin, Stuart	11430	George, Jamie	332	D'Souza, Timothy	369

Finals Matches		Boundary % (min 50	0 runs)	Batting Average (min	500 runs)
Magill, Anthony J	28	Taylor, Chris	69.7	Taylor, Chris	60.77
Dungey, Donald L	27	Francis, Tristan	68.5	Coverdale, Paul S.	48.55
Warren, Justin A	27	Pachaiappan, Rajesh	64.2	Elliott, Kris	44.64
Warren, Paul	25	Mitchell, Ben	62.7	Arcaro, Daniel	43.49
Fanayan, Fab	21	Bowen, Michael	62.6	Hunwick, Manuel	38.15
George, Jamie	21	Wittensleger, Arden	62.5	Reilly, Michael	37.43
Harmer, Matthew J	21	Cleary, Simon V	61.7	Berry, David P.	37.38
Dart, Geoffrey	20	Bradbury, Chris	61.4	Pachaiappan, Rajesh	37.14
Dawson, Ken	19	Ali, Yahya	61.3	Trevenen, Hudson	36.89
Farrall, Geoff	19	Arcaro, Daniel	61.1	Wittensleger, Arden	34.73
Lockyer, Christopher	19	Amato, Shane	59.4	Pattison, lan	34.32
Davies, Glenn M	18	Singh, Amarjit	58.5	Smith, Kieran E	33.26
Fanayan, Omid	18	Magill, Anthony J	58.1	Bates, Michael D	32.94
Paice, Steven	18	Paap, Shane	57.8	Paap, Shane	32.53
Magill, Simon	17	Mueller, Craig	56.7	Verco, Graeme	32.03
Bowling Average (min 5	•	Strike Rate (min 50		Economy Rate (min 1	
Treasure, Edward (Ted)	8.34	Baldwin, Andrew	19.81	Treasure, Edward (Ted)	1.85
Jancey, Max	10.57	Pumfrey, Eric	21.24	Riekie, Wayne T.	1.96
Wright, Norm	10.69	Down, Roy	24.20	Woodley, Leonard	2.13
Woodley, Leonard	10.86	George, Shane	24.80	Schneider, Alf	2.14
Farrall, Geoff	11.77	Warren, Michael	25.52	Van Roon, Neil	2.17
Rankin, Stuart	11.81	Ritchie, Roy	25.60	Rankin, Stuart	2.18
Watson, John (Blue)	12.06	Farrall, Geoff	26.61	Wallace, Bruce	2.19
Trouchet, Brian	12.23	Jancey, Max	26.89	Little, Ken	2.19
Wiegele, Herb	12.28	Treasure, Edward (Ted)	27.11	Eikelboom, Vic	2.20
Crane, Shayne	12.45	Wright, Norm	27.47	Selfe, Luke N.	2.21
Saini, Balwinder	13.00	Saini, Balwinder	27.90	Wiegele, Herb	2.21
Ritchie, Roy	13.02	Woodhead, George	27.91	Watson, John (Blue)	2.23
Rickards, Craig A.	13.22	Tobin, Dennis	28.69	Hughes, John	2.23
Edmonds, Gus	13.30	Elpitelli, Dino	29.09	Street, Eddie	2.24
Price, Laurie	13.34	Shaw, Warren	29.32	Malins, Anthony	2.26
Not out % (min 25 inni	nas)	Duck % (min 25 inn	inas)		
Shah, Hiten	55.00	Cooper, Alf	0.00		-
Swansson, Daniel	48.48	Myers, Noel	0.00		
Baldwin, Andrew	48.39	Sarre, John	2.27		
Henshall, Stephen	46.58	Thorpe, Steve	2.78		
Cheeseman, Daniel	46.03	Coverdale, Paul S.	2.86		
Scott, Dean	45.59	Taylor, Chris	2.94		
Fisk, Anthony	44.44	Verco, Graeme	3.03		
Duncan, Rodney	43.75	Jardine, David	3.03		
Solomon, Darren J.	43.59	Carr, Steve	3.13		
Boulazeris, George	43.33	Bennett, Robert	3.23		
Gittus, David	43.24	Elpitelli, Dino	3.51		
	43.24 38.24	-			
Henshall, Joseph		Budd, Russell J.	4.00		
Taylor, Robert J	36.59	Atkinson, John	4.00		
Bawden, Harold	35.29	Elliott, Kieren	4.08		
Rive, Derryn	34.29	Tobin, Dennis	4.17		

#### **Top Performers – 1st Side**

Matches		Consecutive M	atches	Finals Matches	
Dungey, Donald L	228	Fanayan, Omid	108*	Fanayan, Farbod	15
Fanayan, Omid	200.5	Daye, Brendan	94	Fanayan, Omid	13
Daye, Brendan	193.5	Daye, Brendan	81	Daye, Brendan	12
Hayward, Brian	189	Hayward, Andrew	78	Farrall, Geoff	12
Hayward, Andrew	185	Farrall, Geoff	78	Paice, Laurence	12
Paice, Laurence	179.5	Palumbo, Adam	64*	Dungey, Donald L	11
Farrall, Geoff	175	Trouchet, Brian	64	Hayward, Brian	10
Quartermaine, Peter	167	Fanayan, Omid	64	Duffy, Jack	9
Fanayan, Farbod	166.5	Paice, Laurence	62	Hayward, Andrew	8
Shah, Hiten	140	Ritchie, Roy	58	Trouchet, Brian	8
Dart, Greg	116	Dungey, Donald L	56	Rankin, Stuart	7
Trouchet, Brian	116	Hayward, Brian	55	Shah, Hiten	7
Magill, Anthony	111	Fanayan, Farbod	49		
Shearing, Steven J	110	Quartermaine, Peter	46		
Nairn, Gregory J	108				
Runs		Most Runs in a Seas	on (no finals)	Fastest 1000 Runs	
Fanayan, Omid	4623	Esmond, Ken	641	Esmond, Ken - 1st 1000	26
Dungey, Donald L	4427	Esmond, Ken	591	Esmond, Ken - 3rd 1000	27***
Quartermaine, Peter	4076	Trevenen, Hudson	561	Trevenen, Hudson	28
Daye, Brendan	3769	Paap, Shane	544	Coverdale, Paul	29
Hayward, Andrew	3761	Ali, Yahya	534	Wittensleger, Arden	30
Paice, Laurence	3723	Fanayan, Omid	514	Hunwick, Manuel	34
Hayward, Brian	3305	Rankin, Stuart	499	Berry, David P	36
Esmond, Ken	2783	Verco, Graeme	473	Smith, Mathew	37
Farrall, Geoff	2559	Dungey, Donald L	471	Shearing, Steven -1st 1000	39
Shearing, Steven J	2491	Pattison, lan	471	Fanayan, Omid - 4th 1000	39
Fanayan, Farbod	2408	Coverdale, Paul	471	Fanayan, Omid - 3rd 1000	40
Rankin, Stuart	2082	Trevenen, Hudson	459	Paice, Laurence -2nd 1000	41
Dart, Greg	2040			Daye, Brendan - 2nd 1000	42
Berry, David P	1802			Fanayan, Omid - 2nd 1000	43
Thompson, Lance	1609			Esmond, Ken - 2nd 1000	44***
Wickets		Most Wkts in a Seas	on (no finals)	Fastest 100 Wickets	i
Farrall, Geoff	541	Rankin, Stuart	64	Farrall, Geoff - 3rd 100	29**
Daye, Brendan	531	Farrall, Geoff	57	Farrall, Geoff - 4th 100	33****
Rankin, Stuart	296	Rankin, Stuart	54	Rankin, Stuart - 2nd 100	34
Trouchet, Brian	292	Farrall, Geoff	50	Trouchet, Brian - 2nd 100	35**
O'Shea, Shaun	262	Trouchet, Brian	49	Daye, Brendan - 4th 100	37
Hayward, Andrew	255	Farrall, Geoff	49**	Prescott, Chris - 2nd 100	37
Malins, Anthony	253	Ritchie, Roy	47	Daye, Brendan - 3rd 100	38
Nairn, Gregory J	240	Rankin, Stuart	47	Rankin, Stuart - 3rd 100	39
Shah, Hiten	228	O'Shea, Shaun	46	O'Shea, Shaun - 1st 100	40
Prescott, Chris	222	Malins, Anthony	45	Daye, Brendan - 2nd 100	41
Magill, Anthony	209	Prescott, Chris	45	Treasure, Edward (Ted)	42
Treasure, Edward (Ted)	155			Rankin, Stuart - 1st 100	44***
Woodhead, George	148			Malins, Anthony - 2nd 100	45****
Ritchie, Roy	139			Farrall, Geoff - 5th 100	45
Dickerson, lan	123			Farrall, Geoff - 2nd 100	45

<sup>\*</sup>currently in progress at the completion of the 2021/22 season

<sup>\*\*</sup> the figure may include wickets taken in the final played in the 1962/63 season where statistics are incomplete

<sup>\*\*\*</sup>K Esmond passed 2000 run mark during 1962/63, where statistics are incomplete, so not exactly sure of his 2nd and 3rd 1000

<sup>\*\*\*\*1971/72</sup> season where statistics are incomplete, season wickets is known, but not number of innings

<sup>#</sup> Fastest to 1000 runs, 100 wickets and 59 dismissals are listed as innings batted, bowled and fielded in (not matches)

Fours		Sixes		Boundary % (min 500 run	s)
Fanayan, Omid	529	Dungey, Donald L	30	Ali, Yahya	61.3
Daye, Brendan	361	Mehdi, Awais	30	Wittensleger, Arden	60.5
Paice, Laurence	359	Magill, Anthony	30	Arcaro, Daniel	58.6
Dungey, Donald L	334	Fanayan, Omid	22	Paap, Shane	57.7
Hayward, Andrew	294	Ali, Yahya	18	Mueller, Craig	56.7
Fanayan, Farbod	288	Daye, Brendan	17	Mehdi, Awais	56.5
Hayward, Brian	280	Thompson, Lance	17	O'Shea, Shaun	56.4
Farrall, Geoff	264	Horan, Tim	17	Scholefield, Michael	55.7
Quartermaine, Peter	248	Wittensleger, Arden	17	Trevenen, Hudson	55.6
Esmond, Ken	245	Berry, David P	15	Elliott, Kris	55.4
Shearing, Steven J	220	Hayward, Brian	14	Haines, Norm	54.8
Trevenen, Hudson	186	Dickerson, lan	14	Chilcott, Colin	54.5
Thompson, Lance	183	Warren, Paul F	14	Warren, Paul F	53.4
Rankin, Stuart	173	Arcaro, Daniel	13	Thompson, Lance	51.8
Horan, Tim	169	Coverdale, Paul S	12	Horan, Tim	51.7
Horan, Tim	100	Goverdanc, i dui G	12	Horan, Tim	01.7
Dismissals		Most Dismissals Season	(no finals)	Fastest 50 Dismissals	
Fanayan, Farbod	169	Thompson, Lance	32	Warren, Paul F - 1st 50	30
Mills, Steve	141	Berry, David P	31	Mills, Steve - 2nd 50	30
Paice, Laurence	131	Warren, Paul F	31	Solomon, Darren J	31
Hayward, Brian	129	Mills, Steve	26	Esmond, Ken - 2nd 50	31*
Fanayan, Omid	123	Tagliaferri, Steve	26	Fanayan, Farbod - 3rd 50	32
Warren, Paul F	115	Fanayan, Farbod	26	Warren, Paul F - 2nd 50	33
Dungey, Donald L	107	Mills, Steve	25	Fanayan, Farbod - 2nd 50	34
Hayward, Andrew	107	Inkster, Paul	25	Mills, Steve - 1st 50	35
Esmond, Ken	107	Warren, Paul F	25	Esmond, Ken - 1st 50	39
Daye, Brendan	100	Solomon, Darren J	25	Tagliaferri, Steve	40
Farrall, Geoff	98	Fanayan, Farbod	25	Hayward, Brian - 2nd 50	41
Berry, David P	89	,		Berry, David P	43
Solomon, Darren J	80			,	
Thompson, Lance	77				
Quartermaine, Peter	64				
Harmer, Matthew J	64				
Balls Bowled	40004	Maidens	050	Run Outs	445
Daye, Brendan	19224	Daye, Brendan	853	Daye, Brendan	14.5
Farrall, Geoff	13811	Shah, Hiten	562	Dickerson, Malcolm	14.5
Hayward, Andrew	11561	Nairn, Gregory J	468	Fanayan, Farbod	14
Shah, Hiten	10874	Hayward, Andrew	438	Magill, Anthony	14
Nairn, Gregory J	10443	Magill, Anthony	377	Dungey, Donald L	11
Rankin, Stuart	9897	O'Shea, Shaun	338	Harmer, Matthew J	10.5
O'Shea, Shaun	8976	Prescott, Chris	325	Hayward, Brian	9
Malins, Anthony	8813	Rankin, Stuart	287	Fanayan, Omid	9
Trouchet, Brian	8614	Farrall, Geoff	248	Berry, David P	8
Magill, Anthony	8569	Malins, Anthony	238	Solomon, Darren J	7.5
Prescott, Chris	8038	Dickerson, lan	216	Lockyer, Matthew	7
Dickerson, lan	6148	Trouchet, Brian	188	Hayward, Andrew	6.5
Treasure, Edward (Ted)	4520	Gittus, David	168	Nairn, Gregory J	6.5
Woodhead, George	4446	Vallow, Scott	160	Mills, Steve	6
Street, Eddie	3692	Treasure, Edward (Ted)	147	Paice, Laurence	5.5
				Shah, Hiten	5.5

<sup>\* 1962/63</sup> and 1963/64 seasons incomplete, number of innings for missing matches is unknown

## **Top Performers – 2<sup>nd</sup> Side**

Matches		Consecutive Match	ies	Finals Matches	
Harmer, Matthew J	181	Magill, Simon	70	Harmer, Matthew J	16
Pritchard, Chris	166.5	Davies, Glenn M	36	Magill, Simon	15
Magill, Simon	165	Clarke, Jim Snr	33	Magill, Anthony J	12
Cairns, Stephen G	131	Daw, Cameron	33	Davies, Glenn M	11
Davies, Glenn M	131	Harmer, Matthew J	31	Daye, Steven M	9
Woodhead, George	121	Harrison, Terry	31	Spencer, Kirk	8
Ritchie, Roy	119	Sibson, Jarrad	31	Cheeseman, Daniel	7
Malins, Anthony	114	Kewan, Ken	30	D'Souza, Timothy	7
Street, Ron	106	Cairns, Stephen G	28	Pritchard, Chris	7
Paice, Steven	105	Ritchie, Roy	28	Sibson, Jarrad	7
Sibson, Jarrad	105	Street, Ron	28	Thomas, Jai P	7
Hayward, Brian	96	Pritchard, Chris	26	Paice, Steven	6
Dickerson, Greg J	95			Welsh, Jos	6
Magill, Anthony	95				
Dungey, Ralph	93				
Runs		Most Runs in a Season (ı	no finals)	Fastest 1000 Runs	
Harmer, Matthew J	3752	Clarke, Jim Snr	463	Roberts, Phil - 2nd 1000	27
Pritchard, Chris	3352	Rankin, Stuart	444	Sheppard, Greg	36
Magill, Simon	3047	Daw, Cameron	442	Hayward, Brian - 2nd 1000	37
Harmer, William (Bill)	2318	Thompson, Lance	424	Rickards, Damian	39
Roberts, Phil	2299	Saxon, Shane	404	Thomas, Jai	39
Hayward, Brian	2179	Clarke, Gordon	397	Fanayan, Farbod	39
Paice, Steven	1760	Thomas, Jai	391	Harmer, William - 2nd 1000	40
Kenrick, Phil	1689	Roberts, Phil	384	Harmer, Matthew-2nd 1000	43
Cairns, Stephen G	1674	Pritchard, Chris	377	Welsh, Jos	44
Davies, Glenn M	1650	Pritchard, Chris	364	Daw, Cameron	44
Fanayan, Farbod	1561	Hayward, Brian	346	Magill, Simon - 3rd 1000	47
Thomas, Jai P	1549	Martin, Leigh	344	Pritchard, Chris - 2nd 1000	49
Dungey, Donald (Lloyd)	1539	, 3		Fernandez, Ron	50
Magill, Anthony	1524			Martin, Leigh	50
Street, Ron	1491			, 3	
Wickets		Most Wkts in a Season (ı	no finals)	Fastest 100 Wickets	
Malins, Anthony	332	Farrall, Geoff	70	Farrall, Geoff - 1st 100	33
Woodhead, George	326	Ritchie, Roy	43	Farrall, Geoff - 2nd 100	41
Ritchie, Roy	254	Treasure, Edward (Ted)	42	Woodhead, George - 1st	43
Harmer, Matthew J	234	Woodhead, George	42	Woodhead, George - 3rd	45
Farrall, Geoff	229	Thomas, Jai	41	Malins, Anthony - 1st 100	46
Street, Ron	201	Malins, Anthony	39	Malins, Anthony - 2nd 100	47
D'Souza, Timothy	169	Woodhead, George	39	Malins, Anthony - 3rd 100	47
Lukan, Mark	154	Street, Ron	38	O'Shea, Shaun	48
Solanki, Mauneek	139	Woodhead, George	37	Woodhead, George - 2nd	51
Magill, Anthony	131	Farrall, Geoff	37	D'Souza, Timothy	52
Harmer, Ray	128	raman, ocon	01	Harmer, Matthew - 1st 100	53
Williams, John	125			Ritchie, Roy - 1st 100	54
Farrall, Steven	123			Lukan, Mark	5 <del>4</del>
Dickerson, lan	119			Spencer, Kirk	57
Little, Ken	115			Openicei, Mik	31
Little, Nell	110				

<sup>#</sup> Fastest to 1000 runs, 100 wickets and 59 dismissals are listed as innings batted, bowled and fielded in (not matches)

Fours		Sixes		Boundary % (min 500 run	s)
Harmer, Matthew J	386	Harmer, William (Bill)	46	Warren, Paul F	62.8
Pritchard, Chris	364	Magill, Anthony	39	Sheppard, Greg	58.9
Magill, Simon	281	Sheppard, Greg	22	Duffy, Jack	58.8
Hayward, Brian	253	Malins, Anthony	19	Magill, Anthony	56.8
Harmer, William (Bill)	248	Fernandez, Ron G	18	Arcaro, Daniel	56.4
Roberts, Phil	209	Fanayan, Farbod	15	Fanayan, Farbod	56.2
Paice, Steven	204	Spencer, Kirk	13	Tobin, David	55.3
Fanayan, Farbod	197	Warren, Paul F	13	Harmer, William (Bill)	54.7
Thomas, Jai P	173	Roberts, Phil	12	Rickards, Damian	53.3
Rickards, Damian	173	Harmer, Matthew J	11	Daw, Cameron	53.1
Daw, Cameron	173	Sibson, Jarrad	11	Saxon, Shane	52.2
Magill, Anthony	158	Solanki, Mauneek	11	George, Jamie	51.7
Sheppard, Greg	149	Ritchie, Ken	11	Spencer, Kirk	51.5
Dickerson, Greg J	142	George, Jamie	11	Hewitt, Damien P	50.6
Kenrick, Phil	139			Chandler, Justin	49.4
Ritchie, Roy	139				
Dismissals		Most Dismissals Season		Fastest 50 Dismissals	
Davies, Glenn M	179	Napier, Bruce	28	Napier, Bruce	33
Pritchard, Chris	145	Davies, Glenn M	25	Davies, Glenn M - 3rd 50	34
Harmer, Matthew J	96	Davies, Glenn M	25	Davies, Glenn M - 2nd 50	52
Sibson, Jarrad	87	Daw, Cameron	25	Davies, Glenn M - 1st 50	56
Magill, Simon	84	Di Perna, John	23	Harmer, Matthew J	57
Hayward, Brian	77	Kozak, Jeff	22	Daw, Cameron	66
Harmer, William (Bill)	70	Tagliaferri, Steve	22	Farrall, Peter	69
Kenrick, Phil	67	Harmer, William (Bill)	21	Pritchard, Chris - 2nd 50	78
Napier, Bruce	61	Kenrick, Phil	19	Sibson, Jarrad	84
Daw, Cameron	56	Sibson, Jarrad	19	Pritchard, Chris - 1st 50	86
Farrall, Peter	56	Pritchard, Chris	19	Hayward, Brian	90
Paice, Steven	51	Thompson, Lance	18	Kenrick, Phil	91
Di Perna, John	49	Farrall, Peter	18	Harmer, William (Bill)	113
Roberts, Phil	47	Napier, Bruce	18	Magill, Simon	123
Malins, Anthony	46	Davies, Glenn M	18	Paice, Steven	128
Palla Pawlad		Maidana		Bun Quito	
Balls Bowled Malins, Anthony	12583	Maidens Malins, Anthony	474	Run Outs  Magill, Anthony	11.5
Woodhead, George	9041	Harmer, Matthew J	348	Harmer, Matthew J	9.5
Harmer, Matthew J	8805	Lukan, Mark	283	Pritchard, Chris	7.5
Street, Ron	7417	Magill, Anthony	238	Dickerson, Malcolm	6
Ritchie, Roy	6398	Dickerson, lan	237	Davies, Glenn M	5
D'Souza, Timothy	6281	D'Souza, Timothy	223	Paice, Steven	5
Lukan, Mark	5661	Harmer, Ray	219	Solanki, Mauneek	5
Harmer, Ray	5323	Solanki, Mauneek	187	Sibson, Jarrad	4.5
•	5278	Nairn, Gregory J	181		4.5
Farrall, Geoff			169	Fanayan, Farbod	4
Dickerson, lan	5141	Woodhead, George		Lukan, Mark	
Magill, Anthony	5133	Street, Ron	169	Daw, Cameron	3.5
Solanki, Mauneek	4510	Spencer, Kirk	150	D'Souza, Timothy	3.5
Farrall, Steven	4272	Fisk, Anthony	144	Dungey, Donald (Lloyd)	3.5
Williams, John	3937	Dickerson, Malcolm	126	Lockyer, Chris	3.5
Little, Ken	3858	O'Shea, Shaun	125	Murphy, Paul	3.5
		Barry, David K	125	Hansen, Andrew	3.5

## **Top Performers – 3<sup>rd</sup> Side**

Matches		Consecutive Mat	tches	Finals Matches	
Farrall, Geoff	156	Williams, John	47	Warren, Justin A	15
Chapman, Blair	153	Elpitelli, Dino	36	George, Jamie	11
Dungey, Donald L	123.5	Warren, Justin A	28	Chapman, Blair	9
Warren, Justin A	123	Scott, Dean	27**	Hewitt, Glen	9
Cairns, Stephen G	119	Saini, Balwinder	26*	Paice, Steven	8
Roach, Peter (Snr)	85	Quartermaine, Peter	25	Bhan, Ujjwal	7
Dart, Geoffrey	84	King, Steve	22	Dart, Geoffrey	7
McNab, Cameron R	81	Bhan, Ujjwal	22	Dungey, Donald L	7
Williams, John	81	Farrall, Michael	21	Warren, Paul	7
Hewitt, Glen	79.5	Dungey, Donald L	21	Cairns, Stephen G	6
George, Jamie	73	Farrall, Geoff	21	Fernandez, Ron G	6
Paice, Steven	70.5	Bhan, Üjjwal	21	Magill, Anthony J	6
Bhan, Ujjwal	69.5	Lukan, Mark	20	3	
Magill, Anthony	69	Kelly, Brendan	20		
Lockyer, Christopher	66.5	Smith, Peter C	20		
Looky or, ormotophor	00.0		20		
Runs		Most Runs in a Seasor		Fastest 1000 Runs	
Warren, Justin A	3209	Daquino, Edward	381	Warren, Justin A -1st 1000	32
Cairns, Stephen G	2257	Warren, Justin A	377	Welsh, Jos	33
Dungey, Donald L	2211	Paice, Steven	353	Shearing, Steven J	35
Chapman, Blair	1588	Singh, Gurvinder	344	Fernandez, Ron	39
Paice, Steven	1581	Haines, Douglas	339	Warren, Justin A -2nd 1000	42
Warren, Paul F	1486	Sheppard, Greg	332	Dungey, Donald L	43
Magill, Anthony	1474	Shearing, Steven J	332	Warren, Paul F	45
Chapman, Keith	1393	Kelly, Brendan	328	Pritchard, Chris	45
Roach, Peter (Snr)	1375	Fanayan, Omid	322	Warren, Justin A -3rd 1000	47
George, Jamie	1346	Jefferys, Stewart	318	Paice, Steven	49
Hewitt, Glen	1292	Shearing, Steven J	317	Magill, Anthony	51
Williams, John	1248			Cairns, Stephen -2nd 1000	52
Pritchard, Chris	1247			George, Jamie	53
Shearing, Steven J	1163			Williams, John	53
Welsh, Jos	1144				
Wickets		Most Wkts in a Seasor	n (no finals)	Fastest 100 Wickets	
Farrall, Geoff	446	Farrall, Geoff	71	Harmer, Ray	30
Chapman, Blair	190	Harmer, Ray	69	Farrall, Geoff - 2nd 100	32
Williams, John	180	Farrall, Geoff	52	Farrall, Geoff - 3rd 100	32
Malins, Anthony	166	Malins, Anthony	43	Malins, Anthony	40
George, Jamie	164	Lukan, Mark	40	Chapman, Blair	47
Lockyer, Christopher	122	Woodhead, George	38	Farrall, Geoff - 1st 100	49
Scott, Dean	120	Malins, Anthony	36	George, Jamie	52
Harmer, Ray	113	Farrall, Geoff	35	Williams, John	53
King, Steve	112	Farrall, Geoff	34	Farrall, Geoff - 4th 100	54
Bhan, Ujjwal	104	Malins, Anthony	34	Lockyer, Christopher	55
Lukan, Mark	97	Wallis, Attendity	04	King, Steve	57
Roach, Peter (Jnr)	96			Scott, Dean	60
Hughes, John	94			Joseph Jean	00
Magill, Anthony	9 <del>4</del> 85				
Gascoigne, Derek	84				
Cascolytie, Delek	04				

<sup>\*\* -</sup> does not include 2000/01 finals (4 games before, then continued after the two finals)

<sup>\*</sup>currently in progress at the completion of the 2021/22 season

<sup>#</sup> Fastest to 1000 runs, 100 wickets and 59 dismissals are listed as innings batted, bowled and fielded in (not matches)

Fours		Sixes		Boundary % (min 500	) runs)
Warren, Justin A	328	Warren, Justin A	48	Cleary, Simon V	70.5
Paice, Steven	175	Magill, Anthony	34	Hendry, Jamie	61.4
Magill, Anthony	168	Warren, Paul F	25	Magill, Anthony	59.4
Dungey, Donald L	163	Cleary, Simon V	25	Singh, Amarjit	59.1
George, Jamie	155	Hendry, Jamie	22	Thomas, Andrew	56.8
Warren, Paul F	153	Singh, Amarjit	16	Marlborough, Jason	56.8
Cairns, Stephen G	140	George, Jamie	13	Welsh, Jos	54.0
Pritchard, Chris	140	Welsh, Jos	13	Smith, Peter C	53.9
Welsh, Jos	135	Roach, Peter (Jnr)	12	Daquino, Edward	52.2
Chapman, Blair	133	Dungey, Donald L	11	George, Jamie	51.9
Daquino, Edward	131	Sheppard, Greg	9	Warren, Paul F	51.3
Hewitt, Glen	117	Malins, Anthony	9	Dickerson, Malcolm	50.1
Singh, Amarjit	108	Stace, Andrew	9	Warren, Justin A	49.9
Shearing, Steven J	104	Smith, Peter C	8	Haines, Douglas	48.6
Smith, Peter C	103	Thomas, Andrew	8	Groube, Anthony	48.1
Official, i etci O	100	Riches, Jamey S	8	Gloube, Anthony	70.1
		racines, damey e	Ü		
Dismissals		Most Dismissals Season (no	finals)	Fastest 50 Dismiss	sals
Dart, Geoffrey	99	White, Chris	28	Tagliaferri, Steve	32
Warren, Justin A	88	Tagliaferri, Steve	27	Dart, Geoffrey	46
McNab, Cameron R	73	Haines, Douglas	23	Kelly, Brendan	54
Pritchard, Chris	63	Dart, Greg	22	Pritchard, Chris	59
Tagliaferri, Steve	62	McNab, Cameron R	22	Warren, Justin A	69
Kelly, Brendan	61	Napier, Bruce	21	McNab, Cameron R	79
Cairns, Stephen G	55	Tyas, Martin	21	Paice, Steven	89
Paice, Steven	52	McNab, Cameron R	20	Cairns, Stephen G	162
Napier, Bruce	46	Farrall, Peter	19		
Warren, Paul F	44	Kelly, Brendan	18		
Jeffreys, Stewart D	44	Wickramaratne, Dammica	18		
Harmer, Ken	43	Di Perna, John	18		
Dart, Greg	41	211 31113, 331111			
Wickramaratne, Dammica	38				
Davies, Glenn M	36				
Chapman, Blair	36				
Balls Bowled		Maidens		Run Outs	
Farrall, Geoff	13643	Farrall, Geoff	365	Dungey, Donald L	10
Chapman, Blair	6789	Malins, Anthony	344	Dart, Geoffrey	7.5
Malins, Anthony	5702	Scott, Dean	237	Chapman, Blair	6.5
George, Jamie	5058	George, Jamie	224	McNab, Cameron R	5
Williams, John	4997	Chapman, Blair	202	Kelly, Brendan	5
Scott, Dean	4595	Magill, Anthony	177	Paice, Steven	5
Lockyer, Christopher	3963	Lockyer, Christopher	163	Pritchard, Chris	4.5
Roach, Peter (Jnr)	3732	Hughes, John	155	George, Jamie	4.5
The state of the s	3718	Hendry, Jamie	149	McKeig, Donald R	4.5
Magill, Anthony	3662	Williams, John	148	Scalora, Bart	4
-		,		Warren, Justin A	3.5
Magill, Anthony King, Steve Bhan, Uiiwal		Lukan. Mark	147	Wallell, Justill A	
King, Steve Bhan, Ujjwal	3586	Lukan, Mark Gascoigne, Derek	147 131		
King, Steve Bhan, Ujjwal Hughes, John	3586 3465	Gascoigne, Derek	131	Cairns, Stephen G	3.5
-	3586				

## Top Performers – 4<sup>th</sup> Side

Matches		Consecutive Match	es	Finals Matches	
Lockyer, Chris	119	Smith, Jay	52	Lockyer, Chris	16
Daquino, Edward	104	de Jager, Ken	38	de Jager, Ken	11
Dungey, Donald L	101	Gill, Nirmal	29	Warren, Paul	10
de Jager, Ken	78	Lockyer, Chris	29	Chappelle, Culver	8
Smith, Peter C	76	Dickerson, Greg J	26	Daquino, Edward	8
Smith, Jay	70.5	Nairn, Gregory J	26	Dart, Geoffrey	7
McKeig, Donald R	70	Beaucasin, Michael	21*	Dawson, Ken C	7
Rive, Derryn	66	Dart, Geoffrey	21	Haines, Douglas	7
McNab, Cameron R	61	Smith, Peter C	21	Warren, Justin A	7
Dart, Geoffrey	59	Daquino, Edward	20*	Davies, Glenn M	6
Chappelle, Culver	57	McKeig, Donald R	20	Dickerson, Greg J	6
Haines, Douglas	56	Third, Darren	19	Dungey, Donald L	6
Gascoigne, Derek	54	Baldwin, Andrew (10/5)	18	Shearing, Steven J	6
Hewitt, Glen	52.5	Daquino, Edward	18	•	
Sheppard, Greg	51	Leng, Darren	18		
		-			
Runs	4704	Most Runs in a Season (r		Fastest 1000 Runs	
Daquino, Edward	1724	Berry, David P	610	Berry, David P	22
Haines, Douglas	1512	Chappelle, Culver	430	Shearing, Steven J	27
Dungey, Donald L	1427	Haines, Douglas	390	Haines, Douglas	35
Sheppard, Greg	1333	Warren, Justin A	379	Sheppard, Greg	37
McKeig, Donald R	1324	Sheppard, Greg	374	Warren, Paul F	45
Lockyer, Chris	1313	Daquino, Edward	372	Chappelle, Culver	48
Smith, Peter C	1293	Sheppard, Greg	341	Smith, Peter C	50
Shearing, Steven J	1274	Marlborough, Jason	337	McKeig, Donald R	52
Chappelle, Culver	1222	Kelly, Brendan	323	Dungey, Donald L	56
Warren, Paul F	1124	Elpitelli, Dino	304	Daquino, Edward	63
Berry, David P	1069	Ericson, joshua	304	Lockyer, Chris	76
Dickerson, Greg J	928	Lockyer, Chris	303		
Fernandez, Ron G	901				
Warren, Justin A	890				
Hewitt, Glen	880				
Wickets		Most Wkts in a Season (r	no finals)	Fastest 100 Wickets	
Lockyer, Chris	214	Nairn, Gregory J	40	Lockyer, Chris - 1st 100	44
Edmonds, Gus	125	Nairn, Gregory J	40	Edmonds, Gus	48
Gascoigne, Derek	97	Third, Darren	34	Lockyer, Chris - 2nd 100	66
Nairn, Gregory J	96	Gascoigne, Derek	32		
de Jager, Ken	89	Bell, Dean	27		
Smith, Jay	71	Lockyer, Chris	27		
Smith, Peter C	68	Baldwin, Andrew	26		
Sheppard, Greg	63	Cox, Bill	26		
McKeig, Donald R	61	Hendry, Jamie	25		
Leng, Darren	59	Rickards, Craig	24		
Third, Darren	59	Edmonds, Gus	24		
Magill, Anthony	56	Leng, Darren	24		
Hendry, Jamie	56				
Perrozzi, Sergio	54				
Baldwin, Andrew	53				

<sup>\*</sup>currently in progress at the completion of the 2021/22 season

<sup>#</sup> Fastest to 1000 runs, 100 wickets and 59 dismissals are listed as innings batted, bowled and fielded in (not matches)

Fours		Sixes		Boundary % (min	n 500 runs)
Daquino, Edward	225	Warren, Paul F	34	Cleary, Simon V	65.5
Haines, Douglas	163	Warren, Justin A	32	Warren, Justin A	61.1
Smith, Peter C	161	Cleary, Simon V	31	Magill, Anthony	61.1
Sheppard, Greg	160	Lockyer, Chris	18	Warren, Paul F	59.1
Dungey, Donald L	148	Hendry, Jamie	18	Smith, Kieran E	57.7
McKeig, Donald R	140	Magill, Anthony	17	Daquino, Edward	56.4
Berry, David P	121	Sheppard, Greg	15	Smith, Peter C	56.3
Lockyer, Chris	120	Smith, Peter C	14	Dickerson, Greg J	56.0
Warren, Paul F	115	Fernandez, Ron G	14	Sheppard, Greg	54.8
Dickerson, Greg J	112	Daquino, Edward	12	Berry, David P	51.4
Smith, Kieran E	96	Dickerson, Greg J	12	Hendry, Jamie	48.7
Chappelle, Culver	95	McKeig, Donald R	11	McKeig, Donald R	47.3
Shearing, Steven J	92	Berry, David P	11	Haines, Douglas	47.1
Warren, Justin A	88	Bowen, Michael	11	Fernandez, Ron G	47.1
Magill, Anthony	86	,		Scott, Chris	44.8
- J					
Dismissals		Most Dismissals Seas		Fastest 50 Dis	
Chappelle, Culver	70	Scott, Chris	22	Chappelle, Culver	39
Scott, Chris	48	Warren, Paul F	20		
Warren, Paul F	47	Dart, Geoffrey	20		
McNab, Cameron R	47	Chapman, Trent	19		
McKeig, Donald R	45	Chappelle, Culver	19		
Smith, Peter C	43	Delane, Steve	16		
Davies, Glenn M	43	Davies, Glenn M	16		
Lockyer, Chris	36	Warren, Michael	15		
Haines, Douglas	35	Chappelle, Culver	15		
Rive, Derryn	34	Woolhead, Leslie	15		
de Jager, Ken	33	Chappelle, Culver	15		
Dart, Geoffrey	33				
Fernandez, Ron G	32				
Chapman, Trent	32				
Dickerson, Greg J	27				
Balls Bowled		Maidens	<b>;</b>	Run Ou	ts
Lockyer, Chris	7798	Lockyer, Chris	353	Dart, Geoffrey	8.5
de Jager, Ken	3832	Gascoigne, Derek	158	McNab, Cameron R	8
Edmonds, Gus	3646	de Jager, Ken	154	Chappelle, Culver	7
Gascoigne, Derek	3434	Edmonds, Gus	152	Dungey, Donald L	5.5
Smith, Jay	2912	Nairn, Gregory J	141	Warren, Paul F	4.5
Nairn, Gregory J	2758	Magill, Anthony	110	Edmonds, Gus	4.5
Smith, Peter C	2443	Massee, Martin	99	Scott, Chris	4
Leng, Darren	2356	Hendry, Jamie	93	Lockyer, Chris	4
Magill, Anthony	2318	Leng, Darren	84	Ericson, Joshua	4
McKeig, Donald R	2073	Smith, Jay	81	Keyte, Austin A	4
Third, Darren	2024	Crane, Shayne	79	Gascoigne, Derek	3.5
Ericson, Joshua	1987	Smith, Peter C	72	<i>5 ,</i>	
Sheppard, Greg	1943	Third, Darren	71		
Hendry, Jamie	1839	Dickerson, lan	71		
Massee, Martin	1701	McKeig, Donald R	60		
•		<b>J</b> .			

## **Top Performers – 5<sup>th</sup> Side**

Matches		Consecutive Matcl	hes	Finals Matches	
Cairns, Stephen G	113	Shaw, Warren (10/5)**	36	Cairns, Stephen G	3
Nairn, Gregory J	84	Nairn, Gregory J	34	Dart, Geoffrey	3
Dungey, Donald L	78	Dungey, Donald L	26	Harris, Lachlan	3
Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	55	Dart, Geoffrey	22	Keenan, Bradley	3
Dart, Geoffrey	54	Dart, Geoffrey	20	Nairn, Gregory J	3
Shaw, Warren	47	Spencer, Kirk	18	Swansson, Daniel	3
Nairn, Joshua G	41	Chapman, Blair	17	14 players	2
Swansson, Daniel	39	Nairn, Gregory J	17		
Dawson, Stafford G	37	Holly, Brad	17		
Partridge, Geoffrey	37	Cairns, Stephen G	16		
Spencer, Kirk	36				
Chapman, Blair	34				
Keenan, Bradley	32				
Bindon, Bruce	27.5				
Nicol, John	27				
Runs		Most Runs in a Season (	no finals)	Fastest 1000 Runs	
Dungey, Donald L	2217	Chappelle, Culver	425	Dungey, Donald - 1st 1000	38
Cairns, Stephen G	1516	Dungey, Donald L	415	Dungey, Donald - 2nd 1000	42
Spencer, Kirk	881	Dungey, Donald L	375	Cairns, Stephen G	65
Dart, Geoffrey	718	Dungey, Donald L	348	·	
Warren, Justin A	692	Warren, Paul F	335		
Nairn, Gregory J	662	Haines, Douglas	335		
George, Jamie	651	George, Jamie	329		
Hewitt, Glen	617	Daquino, Ed	326		
Dawson, Stafford G	611	Warren, Justin A	324		
Keenan, Bradley	600	Spencer, Kirk	324		
Daquino, Ed	573				
Shaw, Warren	538				
Chapman, Trent	517				
Haines, Douglas	477				
Chappelle, Culver	425				
Wickets		Most Wkts in a Season (	no finals)	Fastest 100 Wickets	
Nairn, Gregory J	197	Nairn, Gregory J	46	Nairn, Gregory J	39
Shaw, Warren	90	Nairn, Gregory J	39		
Spencer, Kirk	62	Spencer, Kirk	33		
Jolly, Michael	54	Edmonds, Gus	31		
Chapman, Blair	53	Shaw, Warren	30		
Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	53	Nairn, Gregory J	28		
Swansson, Daniel	52	Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	28		
Nairn, Joshua G	43	Ford, Adrian	26		
Edmonds, Gus	39	Shaw, Warren	25		
George-Kennedy, Doug	36	Jolly, Michael	25		
Randolph, David	34				
Hewitt, Glen	31				
Henshall, Stephen	30				
Ford, Adrian	29				
Rickards, Craig A	28				

<sup>\*\* -</sup> matches counted as .5 as played in 1996/97 (one day competition)

<sup>#</sup> Fastest to 1000 runs, 100 wickets and 59 dismissals are listed as innings batted, bowled and fielded in (not matches)

Fours		Sixes		Boundary % (min 500 re	ıns)
Dungey, Donald L	227	Spencer, Kirk	30	Spencer, Kirk	69.0
Spencer, Kirk	107	Dungey, Donald L	25	George, Jamie	68.8
Cairns, Stephen G	94	Taylor, Chris	18	Warren, Justin A	55.2
George, Jamie	94	Warren, Justin A	17	Keenan, Bradley	54.7
Warren, Justin A	70	George, Jamie	12	Daquino, Ed	52.7
Daquino, Ed	68	Keenan, Bradley	12	Dungey, Donald L	47.7
Keenan, Bradley	64	Jolly, Michael	10	Chapman, Trent	47.2
Nairn, Gregory J	62	Katsikis, John	10	Nairn, Gregory J	41.1
Chapman, Trent	61	Warren, Paul F	7	Dawson, Stafford G	40.6
Dawson, Stafford G	59	Daquino, Ed	5	Hewitt, Glen	36.0
Hewitt, Glen	51	Gilders, Michael	5	Dart, Geoffrey	28.7
Dart, Geoffrey	50	Henshall, Stephen	5	Cairns, Stephen G	26.0
_	47	•	4	Shaw, Warren	17.1
Haines, Douglas Nairn, Joshua G	47 45	Nairn, Gregory J Rickards, Damian	4	Snaw, wanen	17.1
		Amato, Shane			
Sheppard, Greg	45	•	4		
		Hendriks, Mark D	4		
Dismissals		Most Dismissals Season (I		Fastest 50 Dismissal	
Dart, Geoffrey	52	Chapman, Trent	18	Dart, Geoffrey	62
Bindon, Bruce	33	Warren, Paul	18		
Chapman, Trent	31	Dart, Geoffrey	18		
Dungey, Donald L	26	Haines, Douglas	16		
Haines, Douglas	26	Bindon, Bruce	15		
Nairn, Gregory J	20	Warren, Justin A	14		
Warren, Justin A	20	Dart, Geoffrey	13		
Nairn, Joshua G	20	Chapman, Trent	12		
Cairns, Stephen G	19	Chappelle, Culver	12		
Spencer, Kirk	18	Bindon, Bruce	11		
Harris, Lachlan	18	Delane, Steve	11		
Warren, Paul F	17	Jefferys, Stewart	11		
Delane, Steve	17				
Keenan, Bradley	16				
Forrester, Peter J	15				
Dalla Davida d		Maidana		Dura Outa	
Balls Bowled	6500	Maidens	378	Run Outs Nairn, Gregory J	0
Nairn, Gregory J	6590	Nairn, Gregory J			8
Shaw, Warren	2672	Spencer, Kirk	106	Dungey, Donald L	5
Chapman, Blair	2479	Chapman, Blair	92	Bindon, Bruce	4.5
Spencer, Kirk	2276	Shaw, Warren	77	Warren, Justin A	4
Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	2202	Jolly, Michael	71	Dart, Geoffrey	3.5
Nairn, Joshua G	2066	Nairn, Joshua G	70	Chapman, Trent	3.5
Swansson, Daniel	1828	Edmonds, Gus	66	Keenan, Bradley	3
Jolly, Michael	1756	Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	63	Nairn, Joshua G	2.5
Edmonds, Gus	1292	Swansson, Daniel	57	Arnott-Dungey, Sheahan	2.5
Randolph, David	1241	Rickards, Craig A	43	Kaskow, Thomas J	2.5
Hewitt, Glen	1158	Hewitt, Glen	39	Spencer, Kirk	2
Henshall, Stephen	989	Henshall, Stephen	38	Harris, Lachlan	2
Ford, Adrian	976	Ford, Adrian	38	George, Jamie	2
Keenan, Bradley	959	George-Kennedy, Doug	36	Plunkett, Sean	2
George-Kennedy, Doug	949	Randolph, David	35		

#### **Top Performers – One Day Side**

Matches		Consecutive Matches		Finals Matches	
Saxon, Les	136.5	Saxon, Les	87	Cleary, Simon V	7
Smith, Peter C	94.5	Saxon, Les (15/7.5)	28.5	Smith, Peter C	7
Shearing, Steven J	86.5	Smith, Peter C (52/26)	26	Arcaro, Daniel	6
Cleary, Simon V	86	D'Souza, Timothy	23	Duncan, Rodney	6
Duncan, Rodney	85.5	Smith, Peter C	21	Perrozzi, Serge	6
Vlismas, Michael	59.5	Harmer, Matthew J	17	Saxon, Les	6
Arcaro, Daniel	57.5	Smith, Peter C	17	Shearing, Steven J	6
Harmer, Matthew J	56	Duncan, Rodney	16	Dawson, Ken C	5
Dawson, Ken C	52.5	Duncan, Rodney	14	Pearson, Glen	5
Warren, Justin A	45	Daquino, Edward	13	Welsh, Jos	5
Perrozzi, Serge	44	Linehan, Paul J (9/4.5)	10.5	Harris, Lachlan X	4
Welsh, Jos	41	Shearing, Steven J (20/10)	10	Linehan, Paul J	4
D'Souza, Timothy	40.5	Arcaro, Daniel	10	Magill, Anthony	4
Davies, Glenn M	38.5	Duncan, Rodney	10	Taylor, Chris	4
Linehan, Paul J	37	Keyte, Austin	10	•	
•		•	10		
Runs		Most Runs in a Season (no	•	Fastest 1000 Runs	
Arcaro, Daniel	3167	Arcaro, Daniel	792	Arcaro, Daniel - 3rd 1000	17
Shearing, Steven J	2039	Arcaro, Daniel	657	Taylor, Chris	21
Smith, Peter C	1730	Smith, Peter C	529	Arcaro, Daniel - 2nd 1000	21
Warren, Justin A	1624	Saxon, Shane	499	Arcaro, Daniel - 1st 1000	24
Cleary, Simon V	1237	Arcaro, Daniel	419	Magill, Anthony	30
Welsh, Jos	1194	Warren, Justin A	407	Smith, Peter C	33
Taylor, Chris	1091	Shearing, Steven J	392	Warren, Justin A	35
Magill, Anthony	1053	Smith, Peter C	384	Welsh, Jos	36
Perrozzi, Serge	997	Linehan, Paul J	371	Shearing, Steven -1st 1000	47
Linehan, Paul J	963	Taylor, Chris	363	Shearing, Steven -2nd 1000	47
Harmer, Matthew J	959	Arcaro, Daniel	353	Cleary, Simon V	67
Vlismas, Michael	922	D'Souza, Timothy	342		
Dawson, Ken C	896	Arcaro, Daniel	341		
D'Souza, Timothy	858	Magill, Anthony	339		
George, Jamie	776	Pachaiappan, Rajesh	335		
W: alcata		Most Wisto in a Coopen (n.	, finala)	Footoot 400 Wieleste	
Wickets Saxon, Les	154	Most Wkts in a Season (no Duncan, Rodney	27	Fastest 100 Wickets Duncan, Rodney	66
Duncan, Rodney	153	Duncan, Rodney	26	Smith, Peter C	73
Smith, Peter C	115	Duncan, Rodney	24	Saxon, Les	93
Cleary, Simon V	83	Harmer, Matthew J	23	Saxon, Les	93
Perrozzi, Serge	72		23 22		
		George, Shane			
Harmer, Matthew J	68 50	Saxon, Les	20		
Warren, Michael J	58 54	Warren, Michael J	19 10		
Vlismas, Michael	54 50	Cleary, Simon V	19 10		
Magill, Anthony	50	Smith, Peter C	19		
Lockyer, Christopher	40	Smith, Peter C	18		
Arcaro, Daniel	33	Groube, Anthony	18		
George, Jamie	32	Saxon, Les	18		
DeJager, Ken	31	Harmer, Matthew J	18		
Strauss, Craig	30	Saxon, Les	18		
George, Shane	27				

<sup>\*</sup>currently in progress at the completion of the 2021/22 season

<sup>\*\* -</sup> matches counted as .5 as played in 2006/07 through 2014/15 (one day competition)

<sup>#</sup> Fastest to 1000 runs, 100 wickets and 59 dismissals are listed as innings batted, bowled and fielded in (not matches)

Fours		Sixes		Boundary % (min 500 rui	
Arcaro, Daniel	341	Arcaro, Daniel	106	Magill, Anthony	67.8
Shearing, Steven J	176	Warren, Justin A	70	Warren, Justin A	67.7
Smith, Peter C	173	Cleary, Simon V	52	Taylor, Chris	66.2
Warren, Justin A	170	Magill, Anthony	51	Arcaro, Daniel	63.2
Welsh, Jos	135	Taylor, Chris	47	George, Jamie	58.8
Taylor, Chris	110	Smith, Peter C	36	Warren, Paul F	57.7
Perrozzi, Serge	103	George, Jamie	22	Cleary, Simon V	56.9
Magill, Anthony	102	Warren, Paul F	19	Smith, Peter C	52.5
Dawson, Ken C	100	D'Souza, Timothy	17	Smith, Kieran E	51.5
Cleary, Simon V	98	Welsh, Jos	12	Welsh, Jos	51.3
Harmer, Matthew J	98	Vlismas, Michael	11	Daquino, Edward	50.0
Daquino, Edward	85	Smith, Kieran E	11	Dawson, Ken C	48.0
Vlismas, Michael	84	Pachaiappan, Rajesh	11	Perrozzi, Serge	46.7
George, Jamie	81	Perrozzi, Serge	9	Vlismas, Michael	43.6
Linehan, Paul J	78	Knight, Michael	9	D'Souza, Timothy	43.6
Dismissals		Most Dismissals Season (	no finals)	Fastest 50 Dismis	sals
Pearson, Glen	52	Warren, Justin A	20	Pearson, Glen	33
Warren, Justin A	45	Warren, Justin A	17		
Smith, Peter C	40	Pearson, Glen	16		
D'Souza, Timothy	37	Pearson, Glen	16		
Arcaro, Daniel	36	D'Souza, Timothy	16		
Welsh, Jos	36	D'Souza, Timothy	16		
Vlismas, Michael	32	Nation, Adrian	15		
Shearing, Steven J	29	Warren, Justin A	15		
Davies, Glenn M	27	Arcaro, Daniel	13		
Perrozzi, Serge	26	Keyte, Austin	12		
Harmer, Matthew J	26	Smith, Peter C	11		
Taylor, Chris	25	Taylor, Chris	11		
Harris, Lachlan X	25	Lockyer, Matthew	11		
Hewitt, Glen	21	Pearson, Glen	11		
		Barton, Elliot	11		
Balls Bowled		Maidens		Run Outs	
Saxon, Les	5404	Duncan, Rodney	91	Smith, Peter C	7.5
Duncan, Rodney	3894	Saxon, Les	82	Perrozzi, Serge	5.5
Smith, Peter C	3133	Cleary, Simon V	53	D'Souza, Timothy	5
Cleary, Simon V	2704	Smith, Peter C	52	Pearson, Glen	4.5
Harmer, Matthew J	1954	Harmer, Matthew J	40	Linehan, Paul J	4.5
Vlismas, Michael	1838	Magill, Anthony	27	Arcaro, Daniel	4
Perrozzi, Serge	1779	Vlismas, Michael	25	Vlismas, Michael	4
Warren, Michael J	1326	Perrozzi, Serge	18	Lockyer, Matthew	4
Magill, Anthony	1274	Massee, Martin	18	Harmer, Matthew J	3.5
George, Jamie	996	Lockyer, Christopher	17	Cleary, Simon V	3.5
Strauss, Craig	994	Warren, Michael J	14	George, Jamie	3.5
Lockyer, Christopher	983	Smith, Kieran E	14	<del> </del>	
DeJager, Ken	859	Rive, Derryn	14		
Smith, Kieran E	858	George, Jamie	12		
Arcaro, Daniel	745				
Jaio, Bailloi	, 10				

#### WE WOULD LIKE TO THANK OUR SPONSORS:





# Bruining Partners.

























bentley

Bottlemart

Sapore espresso bar.